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PUBLIC NOTICE OF MEETING

WOODWAY CITY COUNCIL
MARCH 23, 2020 — 5:30 P.M.

TAKE NOTICE THAT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WOODWAY,
TEXAS, WILL BE HELD VIA TELEPHONE CONFERENCE, COMMENCING AT 5:30 P.M. ON MONDAY,
MARCH 23, 2020, TO CONSIDER AND ACT UPON ANY LAWFUL SUBJECT WHICH MAY COME
BEFORE IT INCLUDING, AMONG OTHERS, THE ITEMS LISTED BELOW.

IN ACCORDANCE WITH ORDER OF THE OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR ISSUED MARCH 16,2020, THE
CITY COUNCIL OF WOODWAY WILL CONDUCT THE MEETING BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE IN
ORDER TO ADVANCE THE PUBLIC HEALTH GOAL OF LIMITING FACE-TO-FACE MEETINGS (ALSO
CALLED “SOCIAL DISTANCING”) TO SLOW THE SPREAD OF THE CORONAVIRUS (COVID-19).

THE MEETING AGENDA PACKET IS POSTED ONLINE AT WWW.WOODWAY-TEXAS.COM . THE
PUBLIC TOLL-FREE DIAL-IN NUMBER TO PARTICIPATE IN THE TELEPHONIC MEETING IS 1-844-
474-0925 WITH ACCESS CODE 13244845.

THE PUBLIC WILL BE PERMITTED TO OFFER PUBLIC COMMENTS TELPHONICALLY AS
PROVIDED BY THE AGENDA AND AS PERMITTED BY THE PRESIDING OFFICER DURING THE
MEETING.

AGENDA

CALL MEETING TO ORDER

INVOCATION

1. Invocation

PRESENTATIONS AND VISITORS

2. Hear visitors

This is the portion of the meeting where members of the public may be heard by the Council on any matter
which is NOT listed as a separate item on the agenda. If you wish to address an item which is listed on the
agenda for this meeting, you will be given an opportunity to speak during consideration of that agenda item

If speaking during “Hear Visitors”, please read: When called to speak, please state your name and address
before beginning your comments. Please limit your comments to three (3) minutes per Resolution R-87-11.
Under Texas law, the Council and staff are not allowed to enter into a discussion with you or among
themselves during this meeting, or take any action other than to provide specific factual information or a
recitation of existing applicable policy and, or, discuss whether to place the matter on a future Council
agenda. Thank you for your cooperation and understanding.
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WOODWAY CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
Page 2
March 23, 2020 - 5:30 P.M.

ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL DISCUSSION, CONSIDERATION AND/OR ACTION

3. Discussion and consider action on extending the Mayor’s seven (7) day Declaration of Local Disaster
Due to Public Health Emergency for thirty (30) days.

4. Discussion and consider action on Ordinance 20-02 amending Chapter 14 % of the Code of Ordinances of
the City of Woodway to add Section 14 ¥z - 5A which excepts certain off-premises or non-premises signs
from the prohibition of Section 14 % - 5(j)

5. Discussion and consider action on FY 2018 — 2019 annual audit

6. Discussion and consider action on minutes of the regular City Council meeting held March 16, 2020, at 5:30 p.m.

CITY MANAGER AND CITY COUNCIL REPORTS

7. City Manager’s Report (Briefings or updates may be provided regarding City services,
administrative/personnel matters, real estate/development, infrastructure, events, regulations, community and
intergovernmental relations issues)

8. City Council Reports (Briefings or updates may be provided regarding City Council committee and liaison
assignments)

CLOSING ITEMS

9. Consider action on the Open Meetings Act Resolution

10. Consider action on adjournment

I certify that the above notice of meeting was posted at Woodway Sty Hall, 922 Estates Drive, Woodway, Texas, on
the 20" day of March 2020 at 5:00 p.m.
Donna Barkley, City Secretary 6

11 This facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Requests for accommodations or
interpretive services must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting. Please contact the City Secretary’s Office at (254)
772-4480 or FAX (254) 772-0695 for further information.
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ITEM #

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM FORM

Meeting Date: March 23, 2020 O Presentation, Report and/or Discussion Only
O Public Hearing/Related Action

Prepared By: Crystal Stark B Individual Discussion/Action
O Consent

Approved By: CD/ [ Executive Session

Caption:

Discussion and consider action on extending the Mayor’s seven (7) day Declaration of Local Disaster Due to
Public Health Emergency for thirty (30) days.

Background Information:

In December 2019, a novel respiratory disease named COVID-19 was detected in Wuhan City, China. The
symptoms of COVID-19 include fever, cough, and shortness of breath that may result in mild to severe illness, and
in some cases death. According to the Center for Disease Control (CDC), it is likely that at some point, widespread
transmission of COVID-19 in the United States will occur. The CDC warns that widespread transmission of
COVID-19 would translate into large numbers of people needing medical care at the same time and the CDC is
recommending no gatherings with 10 people or more be held in the United States for the next eight (8) weeks. In
an effort to flatten the curve and maintain the health of the City of Woodway, the Mayor issued a Declaration of

Local Disaster due to Public Health Emergency on March 18, 2020. The Declaration is currently in affect until
March 25, 2020.

Financial Impact:

Total of Proposed Expenditure: $ 0
Amount Budgeted: $ 0
Account No.: N/A
If not budgeted, other funding options: N/A

Staff Recommendation:

Staff recommends that Council approve the City Manager’s proposal to extend the Mayor’s seven (7) day
Declaration of Local Disaster due to Public Health Emergency to thirty (30) days.
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EXTENSION OF DISASTER DECLARATION

WHEREAS, on March 18, 2020, the Mayor of the City of Woodway, Texas, issued a
proclamation declaring a local state of disaster and public health emergency for the City of
Woodway, Texas, resulting from COVID-19 (novel coronavirus); and

WHEREAS, the conditions necessitating declaration of a state of disaster continue to exist; and

WHEREAS, Section 418.108(b) of the Texas Government Code provides that a local state of
disaster may not be continued for a period of excess of seven days without the consent of the
governing body of the political subdivision;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
WOODWAY, TEXAS:

1. That the state of disaster proclaimed for the City of Woodway, Texas, by the Mayor on
March 18, 2020, shall continue for thirty (30) days.

PASSED AND ADOPTED, this 23"9 day of March, 2020.

CITY OF WOODWAY, TEXAS

Bob Howard, Mayor
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CITY OF WOODWAY
DECLARATION OF LOCAL DISASTER
DUE TO PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY

WHEREAS, in December 2019, a novel respiratory disease named “SARS-CoV-
2" that the causes a disease named “coronavirus disease 2019” (“COVID-1 9”) was
detected in Wuhan City, Hubei Province, China; and

WHEREAS, symptoms of COVID-19 include fever, cough, and shortness of breath
that may result in mild to severe iliness, and in some cases death; and

WHEREAS, on January 30, 2020 the World Health Organization Director General
declared the outbreak of COVID-19 as a Public Health Emergency of International
Concern and advised countries to prepare for the containment, including active
surveillance, early detection, isolation and case management, contact tracing, and
prevention on onward spread of the disease; and

WHEREAS, on January 31, 2020, the U.S. Health and Human Services Secretary
declared a public health emergency for the United States to aid the nation’s healthcare
community in responding to COVID-19; and

WHEREAS, the identification of “community spread” cases of COVID-19 in the
United States could potentially signal that transmission of the virus may no longer be
limited to travel to outbreak areas or contact with travelers who have visited outbreak
areas; and

WHEREAS, according to the Center for Disease Control (“CDC), it is likely that at
some point, widespread transmission of COVID-19 in the United States will occur: and

WHEREAS, the CDC warns that widespread transmission of COVID-19 would
translate into large numbers of people needing medical care at the same time; and

WHEREAS, the CDC is recommending no gathering with 50 people or more be
held in the United States for the next eight (8) weeks; and

WHEREAS, the CDC also warns that schools, childcare centers, workplaces, and
other places for mass gatherings may experience more absenteeism; public health and
healthcare systems may become overloaded with elevated rates of hospitalizations and
deaths; other critical infrastructure, such as law enforcement, emergency services, and

transportation industry may also be affected; and health care providers and hospitals may
be overwhelmed; and

WHEREAS, the Governor of the State of Texas on March 13, 2020 declared a
state of disaster for all counties of Texas; and
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WHEREAS, given, among other things, including the CDC's guidance, there is an
ongoing risk and likelihood of COVID-19 positive patients being identified in the City of
Woodway; and

WHEREAS, the City, local health agencies, and political subdivisions within the
region have been working diligently to implement CDC guidelines, but not require
additional tools and resources to protect the public health given the current state of the
epidemic and the need for a sustained response; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Texas Disaster Act of 1975, as amended, Texas
Government Code, Chapter 418, (the “Texas Disaster Act’), the Mayor is designated as
the Emergency Management Director of the City of Woodway, and may exercise the
powers granted to the Governor on an appropriate local scale; and

WHEREAS, a Declaration of local disaster due to this public health emergency
includes the ability to reduce the possibility to exposure to disease, control the risk,
promote health, compel persons to undergo additional health measures that prevent or
control the spread of disease, including isolation, surveillance, quarantine, or placement
of persons under public health observation, including the provision of temporary housing

or emergency shelters for persons misplaced or evacuated and request assistance from
the Governor of state resources; and

WHEREAS, by this Declaration, | declare all rules and regulations that may inhibit
or prevent prompt response of this threat suspended for the duration of the incident; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority granted to the Mayor under the Texas
Disaster Act, | authorize the use of all available resources of state government and
political subdivisions to assist in the City's response to this situation; and

WHEREAS, the City of Woodway, and the people and communities of the City
have suffered or face imminent threat to the public health and the potential for loss of life
and property resulting from a disaster: the introduction, transmission, or spread (or
imminent threat of the same) of COVID-19 in the City of Woodway; and

WHEREAS, |, the Mayor of the City of Woodway have determined that the
emergency measures must be taken to either prepare for or respond to a disaster due to
this public health emergency in order to respond quickly, to prevent and alleviate the
suffering of people exposed to and those infected with the virus, as well as those that

could potentially be infected or impacted by COVID-19, and to prevent or minimize the
loss of life;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED BY THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF
WOODWAY, TEXAS:

Section 1. Declaration of Local State of Disaster. That a local state of
disaster and public health emergency is hereby declared for the City of Woodway and
incorporated areas pursuant to §418.108(a) of the Texas Disaster Act.
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Section 2.  Duration of Local State of Disaster. Pursuant to §418.108(b) of the
Texas Disaster Act, the state of disaster and public health emergency shall continue for
a period of not more than seven (7) days from the date of this Declaration unless
‘continued or renewed by the City Council. A city council meeting will be held Monday,
March 23, 2020 to consider extending the Declaration.

Section 3.  Publicity and Filing. Pursuant to §418.108(c) of the Texas Disaster
Act, this Declaration of a local state of disaster due to this public health emergency shall

be given prompt and general publicity and shall be filed promptly with the City of Woodway
Secretary.

‘Section 4. Activating of the City Emergency Management Plan. Pursuant to
§418.108(d) of the Texas Disaster Act, this Declaration of a local state of disaster due to

this public health emergency activates the City of Woodway Emergency Management
Plan.

Section 5.  Pursuant to §122.006 of the Texas Health and Safety Code, the
City is authorized to take any actions necessary to promote health and suppress disease,
including quarantine. The City of Woodway hereby declares that those persons under
investigation, persons under management, and quarantined persons remain within the
confines of their homes or in safe, secure facilities during the quarantine period following
their exposure to the virus.

Section 6.  City Facilities. In keeping with the directives of the CDC, effective
March 17, 2020, the following facilities will be closed until further notice: Woodway Family
Center, Carleen Bright Arboretum, Municipal Court, and all City rental facilities and
spaces.

The following city facilities will remain open to the public for normal operations: City Hall,
Public Safety, and Community Services.

Section7. Community Gatherings (as defined in Section 9) are prohibited
anywhere in the City of Woodway. The uses in subsections (i) and (ii) of this section are
not considered Community Gatherings, but are limited or prohibited;

(i) The area where alcoholic beverage consumption occurs for on-premise
consumption, including a bar, lounge, or tavern, or private club shall close:
and

(i) Indoor recreational facilities, including a gym or health studio; indoor

amusement facility, including a bowling alley or a pool hall; or theater
(theatre) shall close.

Section 8.  In addition, the Mayor of the City of Woodway and the Waco-
McLennan County Public Health District ("Health District") strongly recommend canceling,
rescheduling, or not attending events with more than 50 persons. The Mayor of the City
of Woodway and the Health District strongly urge organizations that serve high-risk
populations to cancel any gatherings. These recommendations are based on the social
distancing practices attached to this Declaration as well as the "Implementation of
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Mitigation Strategies for Communities with Local COVID-19 Transmission" issued by the
United States Centers for Disease Control and Prevention ("CDC"). The Mayor of the City
of Woodway and the Health District urge people to not attend non-essential gatherings
during the duration of this Declaration in order to help slow down the spread of the COVID-
19 virus.

Section 9. Definitions:

a. For purposes of this Declaration, a "Community Gathering" is any indoor
or outdoor event or convening, subject to the exceptions and clarifications
“below, that brings together or is likely to bring together fifty (50) or more
persons at the same time in a single room or other single confined or
enclosed space, such as an auditorium, tent, arena or event center, music
venue, meeting hall, conference center, large cafeteria, or any other
confined indoor or confined outdoor space.

b. An outdoor "Community Gathering" under this Declaration is limited to
events in confined outdoor spaces, which means an outdoor space that is
enclosed by a fence, physical barrier, or other structure and where people
are present and they are within six feet of one another for extended
periods.

¢. For purposes of clarity, a "Community Gathering" does not include the
following, or other similar uses, so long as persons attending the
Community Gathering are generally not within six feet of one another for
extended periods; .
(i) spaces where fifty (50) or more persons may be in transit or waiting
for transit such as airports, bus stations, or terminals;
(ii) office space, public and private schools, child-care facilities,
residential buildings, or any type of temporary sheltering or housing;
(i) grocery stores, shopping centers or malls, or other retail
establishments where large numbers of people are present, but it is
unusual for them to be within six feet of one another for extended
periods.

Section 10. This Declaration shall take effect at midnight on the date of signing.

ORDERED this /% day of March, 2020

Mayor Bob Howard
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CITY OF WOODWAY
DECLARATION OF LOCAL DISASTER
DUE TO PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY

ADDENDUM

WHEREAS, since the City of Woodway Mayor issued a Declaration of Local Disaster
Due to Public Health Emergency on March 18, 2020, it has become necessary to include under

Section 7 — Community Gatherings (ii) hair salons/barber shops, nail salons and massage parlors
shall close.

WHEREAS, in addition the Mayor has signed a fourteen (14) day employee leave bank
for every non-essential employee of the City of Woodway. Each employee shall be available for
call-out during normal work hours depending on their craft or need. Each employee will be
contacted daily to verify their status and a report will be given to the City Manager.

WHEREAS, with additional information being provided by federal and state authorities

regarding the need to limit the number of people congregating, the Mayor has changed the
limiting of groups of fifty (50) or less to ten (10) or less as of March 19, 2020 at 1:30 p.m.

SIGNED this _ day of March, 2020.

Bob Howard, Mayor
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ITEM #
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM FORM
Meeting Date: March 23, 2020 O Presentation, Report and/or Discussion Only
O Public Hearing/Related Action
Prepared By: Mitch Davison # Individual Discussion/Action
0 O Consent
Approved By: _ O Executive Session
|
Caption:

Discussion and consider action on Ordinance 20-02 amending Chapter 14 % of the Code of Ordinances
of the City of Woodway to add Section 14 %2 - SA which excepts certain off-premises or non-premises
signs from the prohibition of Section 14 %4 - 5(j).

Background Information:

City staff has recently received questions about the regulations concerning display of sponsorship signage at
youth sports fields. Currently, city ordinance prohibits the display of any off-premises signage/ advertisement
regardless of its intent and purpose. This ordinance revision considers the unique operation of organized youth
sports leagues, schools and community events.

Financial Impact:

Total of proposed expenditure: N/A
Amount budgeted:

Account number:

If not budgeted, other funding options:

Staff Recommendation:

Adopt Ordinance 20-02 amending Chapter 14 % of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Woodway to add

Section 14 V2 - 5A which excepts certain off-premises or non-premises signs from the prohibition of Section 14
72 - 5()).




Packet Pg. 12

ORDINANCE NO. 20-02

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WOODWAY, TEXAS AMENDING
CHAPTER 14 ' OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF
WOODWAY TO ADD SECTION 14 % - 5A WHICH EXCEPTS CERTAIN OFF-
PREMISES OR NON-PREMISES SIGNS FROM THE PROHIBITION OF
SECTION 14 % - 5 (j), PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE,
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE, AND FINDING THAT THE
MEETING AT WHICH THIS ORDINANCE WAS PASSED WAS OPEN TO
THE PUBLIC

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
WOODWAY, TEXAS that:

Section 1. Chapter 14 %4 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Woodway, Texas.
“Signs” is Amended to add Section 14 ¥ - 5A which reads as follows:

14 5-5A Exception for Certain Off-Premises or Non-Premises Signs.

The following Off-Premises or Non-Premises Signs are not prohibited by Section 14 ¥ -
5(j) above:

a) sponsorship signs at youth sports fields operated by an organized league or a school
(public or private). This includes sponsorship signs on fences, backstops, scoreboards or other
structures that are part of the sports field complex;

b) sponsorship signs at the location of a community event that are temporary in nature,
are not put up more than two (2) days before the community event and are taken down not later
than two (2) days after the community event.

c) business identification signs at the site of a festival, fair or food/beverage tasting
event that are only displayed during the run of the event. This may include food/beverage truck
signs connected with a business having a physical premise elsewhere.

d) all signs allowed under this section are limited to a maximum size of 50 square feet.

Section 2. Should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance, or
its application to any person or circumstance, be declared unconstitutional or otherwise invalid for
any reason, or should any portion of this Ordinance be pre-empted by state or federal law or
regulation, such decision or pre-emption shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of
this Ordinance or its application to other persons or circumstances.

Section 3. The amendment to Chapter 14 ¥ of the City’s Code of Ordinances is effective
on the date that this ordinance is enacted.
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Section 4. It is found that the meeting at which this ordinance was passed was open to the
public and complied with the Texas Open Meetings Act.

PASSED and ENACTED this 23" day of March, 2020.

-Bob Howard, Mayor

Attest;

Donna Barkley, City Secretary

Approved:

Michael W. Dixon, City Attorney
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ITEM#___ )

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM FORM

Meeting Date: March 23, 2020 O Presentation, Report and/or Discussion Only
O Public Hearing/Related Action

Prepared By: William Klump E Individual Discussion/Action
O Consent

Approved By: , @ _ O Executive Session

Caption:

Discussion and consider action on acceptance of FY 2018-2019 annual audit

Background Information:

The City’s auditing firm, Jaynes, Reitmeier, Boyd & Therrell, PC, has completed the annual audit for the City of
Woodway’s fiscal year of 2018-2019. As is customary, the City Council Audit/Investment Committee met to
review and discuss the audit findings with staff and the auditors.

Financial Impact:

Total of Proposed Expenditure: N/A
Amount Budgeted: N/A
Account No.: N/A

If not budgeted, other funding options:

Staff Recommendation:

Staff recommends that Council accept the 2018-2019 annual audit prepared by Jaynes, Reitmeier, Boyd & Therrell
based on the review and recommendation of the City Council Audit/Investment Committee.
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30 | Fax 254.776.8489 | jrbt.com

JAYNES REITMEIER BOYD & THERRELL, P.C
gl countants
5400 Bosque Blvd . Ste. 600 | Waco, TX 76710

March 19, 2020

The Audit Committee of the City Council
City of Woodway, Texas:

We have substantially completed our audit of the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Woodway, Texas (the “City”) for the year ended September 30, 2019.
Professional standards require that we advise you of the following matters relating to our audit.

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit

As communicated in our engagement letter dated November 4, 2019, our responsibility, as
described by professional standards, is to form and express an opinion(s) about whether the
financial statements that have been prepared by management with your oversight are presented
fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or
management of your respective responsibilities.

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to
obtain reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, as part of our audit, we
considered the internal control of the City solely for the purpose of determining our audit
procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control.

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our
professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting
process. However, we are not required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other
matters to communicate to you.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously
communicated to you.

An independent member of the BDO Alliance USA
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The Audit Committee of the City Council
City of Woodway, Texas

March 19, 2020

Page 2

Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence

The engagement team; others in our firm, as appropriate; and our firm have complied with all
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence.

Qualitative Aspects of the City’s Significant Accounting Practices
Significant Accounting Policies

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A
summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the City is included in Note 1 to the
financial statements. There have been no initial selections of accounting policies and no changes
in significant accounting policies or their application during 2019. No matters have come to our
attention that would require us, under professional standards, to inform you about (1) the
methods used to account for significant unusual transactions and (2) the effect of significant
accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative
guidance or consensus.

Significant Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management
and arc based on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on
knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events.
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ
markedly from management’s current judgments. The most sensitive accounting estimates
affecting the financial statements are the allowance for doubtful accounts and the actuarial
assumptions for the net pension and total OPEB liabilities and related deferred outflows and
deferred inflows. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop these estimates
and determined that they are reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a
whole and in relation to the applicable opinion units.

Financial Statement Disclosures

Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly
sensitive because of their significance to financial statement users. The financial statement
disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the
performance of the audit.
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The Audit Committee of the City Council
City of Woodway, Texas

March 19, 2020

Page 3

Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known
and likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial,
and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards
require us to also communicate the effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods
on the relevant classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures, and the financial
statements as a whole and each applicable opinion unit. The attached schedules summarize
uncorrected financial statement misstatements whose effects in the current and prior periods, as
determined by management, are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the
financial statements taken as a whole and each applicable opinion unit.

In addition, professional standards require us to communicate to you all material, corrected

misstatements that were brought to the attention of management as a result of our audit

procedures. None of the misstatements identified by us as a result of our audit procedures and

corrected by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial
~ statements taken as a whole or applicable opinion units.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting,
or auditing matter, which could be significant to the City’s financial statements or the auditor’s
report. No such disagreements arose during the course of the audit.

Representations Requested from Management

We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in the
attached letter. '

Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no
consultations with other accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters.

Other Significant Matters, Findings, or Issues

In the normal course of our professional association with the City, we generally discuss a variety
of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, operating
and regulatory conditions affecting the entity, and operational plans and strategies that may
affect the risks of material misstatement. None of the matters discussed resulted in a condition to
our retention as the City’s auditors.
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The Audit Committee of the City Council
City of Woodway, Texas

March 19, 2020

Page 4

We applied certain limited procedures to management’s discussion and analysis, the budgetary
comparison information, the schedules of changes in net pension and total OPEB liabilities, and
the schedules of pension/OPEB contributions (collectively, the “RSI”), which are required
supplementary information that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures
consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the RSI. ‘

" This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Audit Committee of the City
Council and management within the City and is not intended to be and should not be used by

anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

%meﬁﬁ. Retuerer, A"”‘f‘/ +774rrc/// /e,
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Summary of Uncorrected Misstatements - Governmental Activities

Amounts Per Financial Statements

Effect of Current Period Uncorrected Misstatements
Effect of Prior Period Uncorrected Misstatements
Net Effect of Uncorrected Misstatements

Financial Statement Effect of Uncorrected Misstatements: Over (Under) Statement

Total
Total Assets |Liabilities and
and Deferred Deferred Change in
Outflows Inflows Net Position Revenues Expenses Net Position
40,358,359 7,408,670 32,949,689 12,816,329 10,963,249 1,853,080
(42,600) - (42,600)
43,700 - 43,700

No. Description
To properly recognize miscellancous revenues for
1 |certain activities - City's policy is to recognize

revenue when related expenditure is incurred,

(42,600)

1,100

(42,600)

1,100

(42,600)
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Summary of Uncorrected Misstatements - General Fund

Amounts Per Financial Statements

Effect of Current Period Uncorrected Misstatements
Effect of Prior Period Uncorrected Misstatements
Net Effect of Uncorrected Misstatements

Financial Statement Effect of Uncorrected Misstatements: Over (Under) Statement

Total
Total Assets | Liabilities and
and Deferred Deferred Fund Net Change in
Outflows Inflows Balance Revenues Expenditures | Fund Balance
4,745,232 882,479 | 3,862,753 | 10,778,664 10,600,085 178,579
60,600 (60,600) (60,600) - (60,600)
49,900 - 49,900

(10,700)

No. Description
To properly recognize miscellancous revenues for
1 |certain activities - City's policy is to recognize revenue
when expenditure is incurred. - 42,600 (42,600) (42,600) R (42,600)
2 |To recognize 60-day collections of property taxes
(available revenue) - City recognizes on a cash basis, - 18,000 (18,000) (18,000) - (18,000)
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March 19, 2020

Jaynes, Reitmeier, Boyd & Therrell, P. C.
P. O.Box 7616
Waco, TX 76714-7616

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of
the City of Woodway, Texas (the “City”), which comprise the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information as of September 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial
position and, where applicable, cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements, for the purpose of expressing opinions on whether the financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position and results of operations of the
various opinion units of the City in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted for
governments in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”).

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material.
[tems are considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of
accounting information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the

judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by
the omission or misstatement.

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we
considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves as of March 19, 2020.

Financial Statements

1) We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter
dated November 4, 2019, for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements of the various opinion units referred to above in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

2)  We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

3)- We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control to prevent and detect fraud.

Wedenmre Heme o Woodi
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4)

5)

6)

7)

8)

9)

10)

11)

12)

13)
14)

2

We acknowledge our responsibility for compliance with the laws, regulations, and
provisions of contracts and grant agreements.

We have reviewed, approved, and taken responsibility for the financial statements and
related notes.

We have identified and communicated to you all previous audits, attestation engagements,
and other studies related to the audit objectives and whether related recommendations have
been implemented.

Significant agsumptions we used in making accounting estimates, including those measured
at fair value, are reasonable.

Related patty relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and
disclosed in accordance with the requirements of U.S. GAAP.

All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which U.S. GAAP
requires adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.

The effects of uncorrected misstatements summarized in the attached schedules and
aggregated by you during the current engagement are immaterial, both individually and in
the aggregate, to the applicable opinion units and to the financial statements as a whole.

The effects of all known actual or 'possible litigation and claims have been accounted for
and disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

All component units, as well as joint ventures with an equity interest, are included and
other joint ventures and related organizations are properly disclosed.

All funds and activities are properly classified.

All funds that meet the quantitative criteria in GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial
Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local

- Governments, GASB Statements No. 37, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s

15)

16)

Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments: Omnibus, as amended, and
GASB Statement No. 65, Iltems Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, for
presentation as major are identified and presented as such and all other funds that are
presented as major are considered important to financial statement users.

All components of net position, nonspendable fund balance, and restricted, committed,
assigned, and unassigned fund balance are properly classified and, if applicable, approved.

Our policy regarding whether to first apply restricted or unrestricted resources when an
expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net
position/fund balance are available is appropriately disclosed and net position/fund balance
is properly recognized under the policy.
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17)

18)
19)

20)
21)
2)

23)

24)

All revenues within the statement of activities have been propetly classified as program
revenues, general revenues, contributions to term or permanent endowments, or
contributions to permanent fund principal.

All expenses have been properly classified in or allocated to functions and programs in the
statement of activities, and allocations, if any, have been made on a reasonable basis.

All interfund and intra-entity transactions and balances have been properly classified and
reported.

Special items and extraordinary items have been propetly classified and reported.
Deposit and investment risks have been propetly and fully disclosed.

Capital assets, including infrastructure assets, are properly capltahzed reported and if
applicable, depreciated.

All required supplementary information is measured and presented within the prescribed
guidelines,

With regard to investments and other instruments reported at fair value:

The underlying assumptions are reasonable and they appropriately reflect management’s
intent and ability to carry out its stated course of action;

The measurement methods and related assumptions used in detetmining fair value are
approptiate in the circumstances and have been consistently applied.

The disclosures related to fair value are complete, adequate, and in accordance with U.S.
GAAP.

There are no subsequent events that require adjustments to fair value measurements and
disclosures included in the financial statements. -

25) With respect to the non-attest services provided, we have performed the following:

Made all management decisions and performed all management functions;
Assigped a competont individual to oversee the services;

Evaluated the adequacy of the services performed;

Evaluated and accepted responsibility for the result of the service performed; and

Established and maintained internal controls, including monitoring ongoing activities.
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Information Provided
s We have provided you with:

— Access to all information, of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements of the various opinion units referred
to above, such as records, documentation, meeting minutes, and other matters:

— Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the
audit; and

—  Unrestricted access to persons within the City from whom you determined it
necessary to obtain audit evidence.

26) All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in
the financial statements.

27) We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial
statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

28) We have provided to you our analysis of the City’s ability to continue as a going concern,
including significant conditions and events present, and if necessary, our analysis of
management’s plans, and our ability to achieve those plans,

29) We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the City and involves:
— Management;
— Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
—  Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

30) We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the City’s
- financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, vendors, regulators,
or others.

31) We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments
whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements,

32) We have disclosed to you the identity of the City’s related parties and all the related patty
relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

33) There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance
with or deficiencies in accounting, internal control, or financial reporting practices.

34) The City has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or
classification of assets and liabilitics.
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35)

36)

37)

38)

39)

40)
41)

42)

We have disclosed to you all guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the City is
contingently liable.

We have disclosed to you all significant estimates and material concentrations known to
management that are required to be disclosed in accordance with GASB Statement No. 62,
Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-
November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements (“CASB 62”). Significant
estimates are estimates at the balance sheet date that could change materially within the
next year, Concentrations refer to volumes of business, revenues, available sources of
supply, or markets or geographic areas for which events could occur that would
significantly disrupt normal finances within the next year.

We have identified and disclosed to you the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts
and grant agreements that could have a direct and material effect on financial statements
amounts, including legal and contractual provisions for reporting specific activities in
separate funds.

There are no:

~ Violations or possible violations of laws or regulations, or provisions of contracts or
grant agreements whose effocts should be considered for disclosure in the financial
statements or as a basis for recording a loss contingency, including applicable budget
laws and regulations.

— Unasserted claims or assessments that our lawyer has advised are probable of
assertion and must be disclosed in accordance with GASB 62.

— Other labilities or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be accrued or
disclosed by GASB 62,

~ Continuing disclosure consent decree agreements or filings with the Securities and
Exchange Commission and we have filed updates on a timely basis in accordance
with the agreements (Rule 240, 15¢2-12).

We have complied with all aspects of grant agreements and other contractual agreements
that would have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance.

Tax-exempt bonds issued have retained their tax-exempt status.

We believe that the actuarial assumptions and methods used to measure pension and other
postemployment benefit (“OPEB”) liabilities and costs for financial accounting purposes
are appropriate in the circumstances.

The City has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances
on such capital assets; nor has the City pledged any capital assets as collateral.
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45)

46)

47)

6

We agree with the findings of specialists in evaluating the accuracy and completeness of
the net pension/OPEB liabilities and related deferred outflows and deferred inflows, and
have adequately considered the qualifications of the specialists in determining the amounts
and disclosures used in the financial statements and underlying accounting records. We did
not give or cause any instructions to be given to the specialists with respect to the values or
amounts derived in an attempt to bias their work, and we are not otherwise aware of any
matters that have had an impact on the independence or objectivity of the specialists.

We believe that the actuarial assumptions and methods used to measure pension/OPEB
liabilities and costs for financial accounting purposes are appropriate in the circumstances.

The methods and significant inputs and assumptions used to determine fair values of
financial instruments are based on quoted market prices. The methods and significant
assumptions used result in a measure of fair value appropriate for financial statement
measurement and disclosure purposes and are in accordance with the provisions of GASB
Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application.

Expenditures of federal awards were below the $750,000 threshold during the year ended
September 30, 2019, and we were not required to have an audit in accordance with Title 2
CFR Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements of Federal Awards (“Uniform Guidance”).

As part of your audit, you assisted with preparation of the financial statements and related
notes. We acknowledge our responsibility as it relates to the those nonaudit setvices,
including that we assume all management tesponsibilities; oversee the services by
designating an individual, preferably within senior management, who possess suitable skill,
knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of the services performed; and
accept responsibility for the results of the services. We have reviewed, approved, and
accepted responsibility for those financial statements and related notes.

Required Supplementary Information

48)

With respect to Management’s Discussion and Analysis; the Schedule of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Actual — General Fund; the
Schedules of Changes in Net Pension/OPEB Liability and Related Ratios; and the
Schedules of Pension/OPEB Contributions (collectively, “RSI”) accompanying the
financial statements:

~  We acknowledge our responsibility for the presentation of the RSI in accordance with
U.S. GAAP.

~  We believe the RSI, including its form and content, are measured and fairly presented
in accordance with U.S. GAAP,

- The methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the
prior period,
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— We believe the significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement
or presentation of the RSI and the basis for our assumptions and interpretations, are
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances.

Very truly yours,

CITY OF WOODWAY, TEXAS

Shawn Oubre T—
City Manager

¢
, o = /
William Klump N
Director of Finance
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Summary of Uncorrected Misstntements - General Fund

Financial Statement Effect of Uncorrected Misstatements: Over (Under) Statement

Total
Total Assets | Liabilities and

and Deferred Deferved Fund Net Change in
Outflows Inflows Balance Revenues | Expendituwres | Fund Balance
Amounts Per Financial Statements 4,745,232 882,479 | 3,862,753 | 10,778,664 10,600,085 178,579
Effect of Current Period Uncorrected Misstatements ' (60,600) - (60,600)
Effect of Prior Period Uncorrected Misstatements 49,900 - 49,900
Net Effect of Uncorrected Misstatements 10,700) (10 700)
R 1 SR I 5 '
No. Description R m ' .: o
To propetly recognize miscellaneous revenues for
1 |certain activities ~ City's policy is to recognize revenue
whon expenditure is incurred, -t 42,600 (42,600) (42,600)| - (42,600)
2 |To recognize 60-day collections of property taxes
(available revenue) - City recognizes on g cash basis. - 18,000 (18,000) (18,000) - (18,000)
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Summary of Uncorrected Misstatements « Governmental Activities

Financlal Statement Effect of Uncorrected Misstatements: Over (Under) Statement
Total
Total Assets |Liabilities and
and Deferred | Deferred Change in

Outflows Inflows Net Position Revenues Expenses | Net Position

Amounts Per Financial Statements 40,358,359 7,408,670 32,949,689 12,816,329 10,963,249 1,853,080
Effect of Current Period Uncorrected Misstatements - 42,600 _ (42,600) (42,600 - (42,600)

Bffeot of Prior Petiod Uncorrected Misstatements {8y e e 43,700 - 43,700

Net Effect of Uncorrected Misstatements - 42,600 42,600 1,100 - 1,100
D
No. Description R R O H R N A e

To properly recognize miscellaneous revenues for
1 |oertaln activities - City's policy is to recognize

revenue when related expenditure is incurred, . 42,600 (42,600) (42,600) . (42,600)
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Main 254.776.4190 1 Fax 254 776.8489 | jshi.com

March 19, 2020

The City Council and Management
City of Woodway, Texas:

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City of Woodway, Texas (the “City™) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2019, in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we
considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting (“internal control”) as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as discussed below, we identified a
certain deficiency in internal control that we consider to be a material weakness.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the City’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A reasonable possibility exists when the likelihood
of an event occurring is either reasonably possible or probable as defined as follows:

® Reasonably possible. The chance of the future event or events occurring is more than
remote but less than likely.

e Probable. The future event or events are likely to occur.

Professional standards require us to communicate in writing all significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses we identified in our audit, even those that were previously communicated to

you. The following material weakness was previously communicated to you and still exists at
September 30, 2019:

Anindependent menmber of the BDO Alkance USA
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Controls over Annual Financial Reporting

As noted in prior years, we have historically drafted the financial statements and related note
disclosures at the City’s request. However, we cannot be considered part of the City’s
internal controls. Consequently, the inability of the City to prepare its own annual financial
statements and related notes is considered a control deficiency. The fact that we prepare the
financial statements may give users more confidence that the financial statements are correct;
however, it does not eliminate the control deficiency. Management has made a conscious
decision, due to costs or other considerations, to accept the degree of risk posed by this
material weakness in internal control over financial reporting,

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the City
Council, and others within the City, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone
other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

9.%,4,@, Retmerer, A"W/ +77~em:/// /e,
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City of Woodway, Texas
Financial Statements and
Supplementary Information
September 30, 2019
(With Independent Auditor’s Report Thereon)
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JAYNES REITMEIER BOYD & THERRELL, P.C.

Certified Public Accountants

5400 Bosque Blvd., Ste. 600 | Waco, TX 76710
R P.0. Box 7616 | Waco, TX 76714

Main 254.776.4190 | Fax 254.776.8489 | jrbt.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Honorable Members of City Council
City of Woodway, Texas:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City of Woodway, Texas (the “City”) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2019, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this included the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

i

An independent member of the BDO Alliance USA
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Woodway, Texas as of
September 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash
flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis on pages iii through xi, the budgetary comparison
information on pages 43 and 44, and other required supplementary information on pages 45
through 48 (collectively, “the required supplementary information”) be presented to supplement
the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

ﬁwﬂa, Retuerer, [ﬁoy% “Therrell, /e,

March 19, 2020

i



Packet Pg. 36

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the City of Woodway, Texas (the “City”), we offer readers of the City’s
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of
Woodway, Texas for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019. Please read it in conjunction
with the City’s financial statements, which follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

» The assets and deferred outflows of the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows at
the close of the most recent fiscal year by $52,277,147 (net position). Of this amount,
$6,712,024 represents unrestricted net position, which may be used to meet the
government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

> The government’s total net position increased by $3,211,225 during the year, primarily due
to continued profitability of operations and developer contributions of $1.1 million from the
Badger Ranch housing development during the current year.

> As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $16,122,057, an increase of $1,161,302 from the prior year.
Approximately 16% of the fund balance, $2,592,765 (unassigned fund balance), is available
for spending at the government’s discretion.

> At the end of the current fiscal year, unrestricted fund balance (the total of the committed,
assigned, and unassigned components of fund balance) for the general fund was $3,846,547,
or approximately 41% of total general fund expenditures.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The discussion and analysis provided here are intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s
basic financial statements. The City’s basic financial statements consist of three components: 1)
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) the notes to the
financial statements. This report also includes supplementary information intended to furnish
additional detail to support the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-Wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements are
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to
a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents financial information on all of the City’s assets, liabilities,
and deferred inflows/outflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over
time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardliess of the timing of related cash flows.
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in
cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

iii
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Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are
priricipally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from
other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user
fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City include
general government, public safety, highways and streets, sanitation, economic development, and
culture and recreation. The business-type activities of the City include water and sewer
operations.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 1 — 2 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements. A find is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City,
like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided
into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be
useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between government funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains twenty-one individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund, the general capital
projects fund, and the future capital street improvements fund, all of which are considered to be
major funds. Data from the other eighteen governmental funds are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 3 through 5 of this
report.

Proprietary fund. The City maintains one type of proprietary fund. Enterprise funds are used to
report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The City uses an enterprise fund to account for its water and sewer operations. The
proprietary fund provides the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail.

v
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The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 6 - 9 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is necessary to
acquire a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial
statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 10 - 41 of this report.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this
report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the City’s budgetary
data for the general fund and information related to the net pension and total OPEB liabilities.
Required supplementary information can be found on pages 43 through 48 of this report.

Government-wide Overall Financial Analysis
As noted earlier, net position over time, may serve as a useful indicator of a government’s

financial position. In the case of the City of Woodway, assets and deferred outflows of resources
exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows by $52,277,147 at the close of the most recent fiscal

year.
City of Woodway
Net Position
September 30, 2019 and 2018
Governmental Business-type
Activities . Activities Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Cutrent and other assets $ 17,426,796 15,920,939 11,651,596 15,123,126 29,078,392 31,044,065
Capital assets, net 21,040,197 20,679,315  25411,133 20,699,223 46,451,330 41,378,538
Total assets 38,466,993 36,600,254 37,062,729  35822,340 755297722 72,422,603
Deferred outflows
of resources 1,891,366 962,342 363,470 252,795 2,254,836 1,215,137
Other current liabilities 1,212,401 865,666 1,474,730 513,134 2,687,131 1,378,800
Noncurrent liabilities 6,124,525 5,071,508 16,614,228 17,520,586 22,738,753 22,592,094
Total liabilities 7,336,926 5,937,174 18,088,958 18,033,720 25,425,884 23,970,894
Deferred inflows
of resources 71,744 528,813 9,783 72,111 81,527 600,924
Net position:
Net investment in
capital assets 20,448,795 19,344,321 18,961,193 16,431,568 39,409,988 35,775,889
Restricted - nonexpendable 569,797 545,334 - - 569,797 545,334
Restricted - expendable 5,207,215 4,801,710 378,123 361,053 5,585,338 5,162,763
Unrestricted 6,723,882 6,405,244 (11,858) 1,176,692 6,712,024 7,581,936
Total net position $ 32,949,689 31,096,609 19,327,458 17,969,313 52,277,147 49,065,922
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By far, the largest portion of the City’s net position (75%) reflects its investment in capital assets

(e.g., land, buildings, infrastructure, machinery, and equipment) less any related outstanding debt
that was used to acquire those assets. The City uses these capital assets to provide a variety of
services to its citizens. Accordingly, these assets are not available for future spending.
Although the City’s investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted
that the resources used to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital
assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the City’s net position (12%) represents resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of $6,712,024 is
unrestricted and may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and
creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all three
categories of net assets for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate government
activities. For the business-type activities, unrestricted net position is a deficit of $11,858, which "
results primarily from the Water and Sewer fund’s recognition of net pension and other
postemployment benefits (“OPEB”) liabilities of $703,565.

City of Woodway
Changes in Net Position
September 30, 2019 and 2018

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 2,173,311 2,145,550 5,594,001 6,021,184 7,767,312 8,166,734

Operating grants and

contributions 50,827 109,461 - - 50,827 109,461
Capital grants and

contributions 518,162 50,000 608,575 - 1,126,737 50,000

General revenues:

Property taxes 5,244,071 5,041,586 - - 5,244,071 5,041,586
Sales taxes 2,816,346 2,724,579 - - 2,816,346 2,724,579
Franchise taxes 725,949 752,374 - - 725,949 752,374
Hotel occupancy taxes 710,951 775,950 - - 710,951 775,950
Investment earnings and ‘

other general revenues 453,027 325,165 357,813 223,958 810,840 549,123

Total revenues 12,692,644 11,924,665 6,560,389 6,245,142 19,253,033 18,169,807
Expenses:

General government 1,476,739 1,662,143 - - 1,476,739 1,662,143
Public safety 5,836,691 5,027,866 - - 5,836,691 5,027,866
Highways and streets 819,192 766,160 - - 819,192 766,160
Sanitation 938,833 889,422 - - 938,833 889,422
Economic development 629,400 591,473 - - 629,400 591,473
Culture and recreation 1,208,388 1,067,162 - - 1,208,388 1,067,162
Interest on long-term debt 54,006 60,679 54,006 60,679

Water and sewer 5,078,559 5,289,993 5,078,559 5,289,993

10,963,249 10,064,905 5,078,559 5,289,993 16,041,808 15,354,898
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City of Woodway
Changes in Net Position
(continued)
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Increase in net position

before transfers 1,729,395 1,859,760 1,481,830 955,149 3,211,225 2,814,909
Transfers 123,685 223,685 (123,685) (223,685) - -
Increase in net position 1,853,080 2,083,445 1,358,145 731,464 3,211,225 2,814,909
Net position, beginning of ’

the year, 31,096,609 29,013,164 17,969,313 17,237,849 49,065,922 46,251,013
Net position,

end of the year § 32,949,689 31,096,609 19,327,458 17,969,313 52,277,147 49,065,922

The City’s net position increased by $3,211,225 during the current fiscal year. The reasons for
this overall increase are discussed in the following sections for governmental activities and
business-type activities.

Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the City’s net position by
$1,853,080, thereby accounting for approximately 58% of the total growth in the net position of
the City.

> Capital grants and contributions increased $468,162 primarily as a result of contributions
from developers for infrastructure at the Badger Ranch housing development.

> Property taxes increased by $202,485 during the year, which is primarily due to increased
property values and new property being added to the tax roll.

For the most part, increases in expenses closely paralleled inflation and growth in the demand for
services and included a net pension expense recognized during the year.

Revenues by Source - 2019
Governmental Activities

Imvastment and Other
Eamings, 4%

Saes Tawss, 23%

Property Taxes 43%
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Business-type activities.  Business-type activities increased the City’s net position by
$1,358,145, accounting for approximately 42% of the total growth in the government’s net
position. Key elements of this increase are as follows.

» Charges for services decreased $427,183 due to a decrease in gallons sold due to more
rainfall in the summer than in the prior year.

> Capital grants and contributions increased $608,575 primarily as a result of contributions
from developers for water and sewer lines at the Badger Ranch housing development.

» Interest income increased $133,855 as a result of increases in market interest rates for the
investment of the proceeds from the issuance of certificates of obligation in the amount of
$9.2 million.

» Expenses decreased $211,434, which is primarily due to a reduction in the cost of water
purchased from a neighboring city due to decreased demand as a result of more rainfall in
the summer than in the prior year.

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in
assessing the City’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as
a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for discretionary use as they
represent the portion of fund balance which has not yet been limited to use for a particular
purpose by either an external party, the City itself, or a group or individual that has been
delegated authority to assign resources for use for particular purposes by the City Council.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $16,122,057, an increase of $1,161,302 from the prior year. Approximately 4%
of this total amount ($602,251) constitutes nonspendable fund balance. Nonspendable fund
balance represents net resources that are inherently nonspendable because of their form or
because they must remain intact. Approximately 32% ($5,171,026) of the total fund balance is
classified as restricted. Restricted fund balance represents balances with constraints placed on
the use of resources by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments. Another 40% ($6,502,233) of the fund balance is reported as committed.
Committed fund balances represent resources that can only be used for specific purposes
pursuant to constraints imposed by the City Council and would require formal action to remove
or modify the commitment. Additionally, another 8% ($1,253,782) of the fund balance is
reported as assigned, which reflects intended uses of resources as determined by management
based upon City Council direction. The remaining 16% of the fund balance ($2,592,765) is
reported as unassigned and represents the net residual resources.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year,

unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $2,592,765, while total fund balance increased
to $3,862,753. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both
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unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund
balance represents 27% of the total general fund expenditures, while total fund balance
represents 41% of that same amount.

The fund balance of the City’s general fund increased by $178,579 during the current fiscal year
as compared to an increase of $285,616 in the prior year. Key factors in this increase are as
follows: Revenues, transfers in, and proceeds on sale of capital assets exceeded expenditures by
$1,336,164 during the current fiscal year as compared to an increase of $1,485,616 in the prior
year, primarily due to the following:

> Property taxes increased $245,378 during the year, which is primarily due to increased
property values and new property being added to the tax roll.

> Sales taxes increased $91,767 during the year, which is primarily due to an improving
economy and the addition of new businesses within the City.

»> Expenditures increased $450,932, approximately 5% over the prior year, due to annual
raises and related increases in the cost for employee benefits.

The City transfers surplus funds from the general fund to various capital projects funds at year-
end for future capital projects. A transfer was made at year-end for $850,000 to the general
capital projects fund for the City’s slurry seal program, and other future street improvements.

Proprietary funds. The City’s proprietary fund provides the same type of information found in
the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. Total net position of the water and
sewer fund at the end of the year amounted to $19,327,458. The total growth in net position was
$1,358,145. Other factors concerning the finances of this fund have already been addressed in
the discussion of the City’s business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

There are no differences between the original budget and the final amended budget. There were
no significant budget overages in the general fund for the year ended September 30, 2019;
however, there was a transfer of $850,000 to the general capital projects fund that was not
budgeted. Additionally, the following budgetary highlights are noted:

» Sales taxes were $176,346 more than budgeted due to an improving economy and the
addition of the new business within the City.

> The $260,391 and $528,571 positive variance for general government and public safety
expenditures, respectively, results from amounts budgeted for salaries and benefits for
authorized positions that were not filled, as well as amounts budgeted during the year for
equipment not purchased.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type
activities as of September 30, 2019, amounts to $46,451,330 (net of accumulated depreciation).
This investment in capital assets includes land, intangible assets, land improvements, buildings
and improvements, infrastructure, water and sewer facilities, vehicles and equipment, and
construction in progress.
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City of Woodway
Capital Assets
September 30, 2019 and 2018
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Land $ 737,279 737,279 397,331 397,331 1,134,610 1,134,610
Intangible assets 199,900 199,900 - - 199,900 199,900
Land improvements 325,977 351,386 10,484 10,891 336,461 362,277
Buildings and .

improvements 5,576,598 5,791,686 151,972 160,962 5,728,570 5,952,648
Infrastructure 11,142,490 11,004,332 - - 11,142,490 11,004,332
Water system facilities - - 11,703,436 11,454,867 11,703,436 11,454,867
Sewer system facilities - - 6,216,192 6,237,584 6,216,192 6,237,584
Vehicles and equipment 2,492,220 2,551,264 1,186,820 1,012,270 3,679,040 3,563,534
Construction in progress 565,733 43,468 5,744,898 1,425,318 6,310,631 1,468,786

$ 21,040,197 20,679,315 25,411,133 20,699,223 46,451,330 41,378,538

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included developer contributions of
$1,106,500 for infrastructure from the Badger Ranch housing development; continued work on
the Fairway sewer replacement project of $1,635,250; and current year expenditures of $993,879
for the McGregor waterline project. Also, the City recognized $1,643,832 for its undivided
interest in ongoing sewer improvement projects for the Waco Area Metropolitan Area Regional
Sewer System (“WMARSS”). Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found
in Note 9 on pages 24 - 27 of this report.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total bonded debt
outstanding of $16,435,184. Of this amount, $561,402 comprises debt backed by the full faith
and credit of the government. The remainder of the City’s debt represents bonds secured solely
by specified revenue sources (i.e., revenue bonds).

City of Woodway
Outstanding Long-Term Liabilities
September 30, 2019 and 2018

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

General obligation

bonds § 561,402 1,334,994 - - 561,402 1,334,994
Revenue bonds - - 15,873,782 16,904,319 15,873,782 16,904,319
Note payable - - - 120,676 - 120,676
Compensated absences 403,642 371,510 36,881 36,727 440,523 408,237
Net pension liability 5,008,478 3,214,647 682,974 438,361 5,691,452 3,653,008
Total OPEB liability 151,003 150,537 20,591 20,503 171,594 171,040

$ 6,124,525 5,071,688 16,614,228 17,520,586 22,738,753 22,592,274
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The City’s total long-term debt increased by approximately $146,479 (less than 1%) during the
current fiscal year. This change resulted from scheduled principal payments of $1.1 million; a

partial defeasance of $0.7 million; and an increase in the net pension liability of approximately
$2.0 million.

The City maintains an “Aa2” rating from Moody’s Investors Service, and the City maintains an
“AA+” rating from Standard and Poor’s. Additional information on the City‘s long-term debt
can be found in Note 10 on pages 27 - 29 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was
$2,592,765. The City has not appropriated any of this amount for spending in the 2020 fiscal
year budget. The 2020 fiscal year budget of $11,045,986 for the general fund is a balanced
budget.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Woodway’s
finances for all those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of
the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be
addressed to the Office of the Finance Director, City of Woodway, 922 Estates Drive, Woodway,
Texas 76712.

xi
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Basic Financial Statements
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1
City of Woodway, Texas
Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2019
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 16,007,736 817,612 16,825,348
Accounts receivable, net 833,057 944,996 1,778,053
Prepaid expenses and other assets 16,206 - 16,206
Investments 569,797 - 569,797
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - 9,388,988 9,888,988
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 737,279 397,331 1,134,610
Intangible assets 199,900 - 199,900
Construction in progress 565,733 5,744,898 6,310,631
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation:
Land improvements 325,977 10,484 336,461
Buildings and improvements 5,576,598 151,972 5,728,570
Infrastructure 11,142,490 - 11,142,490
Water and sewer facilities - 17,919,628 17,919,628
Vehicles and equipment 2,492,220 1,186,820 3,679,040
Total assets 38,466,993 37,062,729 75,529,722
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows of resources 1,891,366 363,470 2,254,836
Liabilities
Accounts payable 820,768 1,208,309 2,029,077
Accrued liabilities 183,215 122,666 305,881
Customer deposits payable 150,293 125,013 275,306
Unearned revenues 58,125 18,742 76,867
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year 483,642 826,881 1,310,523
Due in more than one year 5,640,883 15,787,347 21,428,230
Total liabilities 7,336,926 18,088,958 25,425,884
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inlows of resources 71,744 9,783 81,527
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 20,448,795 18,961,193 39,409,988
Restricted:
Non-expendable 569,797 - 569,797
Expendable 5,207,215 378,123 5,585,338
Unrestricted 6,723,882 (11,858) 6,712,024
Total net position $ 32,949,689 19,327,458 52,277,147

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2
City of Woodway, Texas
Statement of Activities
Year Ended September 30, 2019
Net (Expense) Revenue and
Program Revenues Changes in Net Position
Operating Capital
Charges for ~ Grants and Grants and ~ Governmental Business-type
Functions/Programs Expenses Services  Contributions Contributions  Activities Activities Total
Governmental activities:
General government  § 1,476,739 - - - (1,476,739) - (1,476,739)
Public safety 5,836,691 379,654 - 20,237 (5,436,800) - (5,436,800)
Highways and streets 819,192 - - 497,925 (321,267) - (321,267)
Sanitation 938,833 1,208,689 - - 269,856 - 269,856
Economic development 629,400 395,670 - - (233,730) - (233,730)
Cutlture and recreation 1,208,388 189,298 50,827 - (968,263) - (968,263)
Interest on long-term .
debt 54,006 - - - (54,006) - (54,006)
Total governmental
activities 10,963,249 2,173,311 50,827 518,162 (8,220,949) - (8,220,949)
Business-type activities:
Water and sewer 5,078,559 5,594,001 - 608,575 - 1,124,017 1,124,017
Total business-type
activities 5,078,559 5,594,001 - 608,575 - 1,124,017 1,124,017
Total $ 16,041,808 7,767,312 50,827 1,126,737 (8,220,949) 1,124,017 (7,096,932)
General revenues:
Property taxes, levied for general purposes 5,241,071 - 5,241,071
Property taxes, levied for debt service 3,000 - 3,000
Sales taxes 2,816,346 - 2,816,346
Franchise taxes 725,949 - 725,949
Hotel occupancy taxes 710,951 - 710,951
Investment earnings 346,112 325,343 671,455
Miscellaneous 71,580 - 71,580
Gain on disposition of equipment 35,335 32,470 67,805
Transfers 123,685 (123,685) -
Total general revenues and transfers 10,074,029 234,128 10,308,157
Change in net position 1,853,080 1,358,145 3,211,225
Net position - beginning of year 31,096,609 17,969,313 49,065,922
Net position - end of year $ 32,949,689 19,327,458 52,277,147

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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3
City of Woodway, Texas
Balance Sheet —
Governmental Funds
September 30, 2019
General Future Other Total
Capital Capital Street Governmental Governmental
General Projects Improvements Funds Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,021,415 5,854,444 2,845,013 3,286,864 16,007,736
Accounts receivable 707,611 - 9,240 116,206 833,057
Prepaid expenditures
and other assets 16,206 - - - 16,206
Investments - - - 569,797 569,797
Total assets $ 4,745,232 5,854,444 2,854,253 3,972,867 17,426,796
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 439,995 348,085 - 32,688 . 820,768
Accrued liabilities 158,944 14,369 - 7,177 180,490
Customer deposits 150,293 - - - 150,293
Unearned revenue 58,125 - - - 58,125
Total liabilities 807,357 362,454 - 39,865 1,209,676
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue - -
property taxes 75,122 - 9,240 10,701 95,063
Fund Balances
Nonspendable 16,206 - - 586,045 602,251
Restricted - - 2,845,013 2,326,013 5,171,026
Committed - 5,491,990 - 1,010,243 6,502,233
Assigned 1,253,782 - - - 1,253,782
Unassigned 2,592,765 - - - 2,592,765
Total fund balances 3,862,753 5,491,990 2,845,013 3,922,301 16,122,057
Total liabilities, deferred
inflows of resources,
and fund balances $ 4,745,232 5,854,444 2,854,253 3,972,867
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds, 21,040,197
Deferred inflows of resources are not available to pay for current period
expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds. A 95,063
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore, are not reported in the funds. (4,307,628)
Net position of governmental activities $ 32,949,689

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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4
City of Woodway, Texas
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
Year Ended September 30, 2019
Future
General Capital Other Total
Capital Street Governmental Governmental
General Projects Improvements Funds Funds
Revenue:
Taxes:
Property $ 4,544,178 - 524,329 181,494 5,250,001
Sales 2,816,346 - - - 2,816,346
Franchise 725,949 - - - 725,949
Hotel occupancy - - - 710,951 710,951
License and permits 117,763 - - - 117,763
Intergovernmental 20,237 - - - 20,237
Charges for services 1,807,648 - - - 1,807,648
Fines 219,513 - - 28,387 247,900
Investment earnings 96,326 103,553 55,663 90,570 346,112
Contributions and donations 25,591 - - 25,236 50,827
Miscellaneous 68,462 - - 3,118 71,580
Total revenue 10,442,013 103,553 579,992 1,039,756 12,165,314
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 1,401,812 - - - 1,401,812
Public safety 5,387,705 - - 19,808 5,407,513
Highways and streets 433,621 - - - 433,621
Sanitation 938,833 - - - 938,833
Economic development 468,675 - - - 468,675
Cultural and recreation 811,854 - - 100,017 911,871
Debt service:
Principal - - - 770,000 770,000
Interest - - - 61,348 61,348
Capital outlay - 464,063 - 305,296 769,359
Total expenditures 9,442,500 464,063 - 1,256,469 11,163,032
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over (under) expenditures 999,513 (360,510) 579,992 (216,713) 1,002,282
Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds on sale
of capital assets 35,335 - - - 35,335
Transfers in 301,316 850,000 - 307,585 1,458,901
Transfers out (1,157,585) - - (177,631) (1,335,216)
Total other financing
sources (uses) (820,934) 850,000 - 129,954 159,020
Net changes in fund balances 178,579 489,490 579,992 (86,759) 1,161,302
Fund balances, beginning of year 3,684,174 5,002,500 2,265,021 4,009,060 14,960,755
Fund balances, at end of year $ 3,862,753 5,491,990 2,845,013 3,922,301 16,122,057

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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City of Woodway, Texas

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of
Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

Year Ended September 30, 2019

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

&~

1,161,302

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However in

the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over

their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount

by which depreciation expense ($1,291,254) exceeded the capital asset

additions ($1,154,211) in the current period. (137,043)

Donations of capital assets increase net position in the statement of activities,
but do not appear in the governmental funds because they are not
financial resources 497,925

Property tax revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide
current financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. (5,930)

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, notes payable) provides

current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of

the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources

of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on

net position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of premiums,

discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these

amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. This

amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term

debt and related items. 773,592

Accrued interest expense and compensated absences reported in the
statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds. (28,382)

Governmental funds report contributions to pension/OPEB plans as expenditures,

whereas pension/OPEB expense is recognized in the statement of activities.

This is the amount by which pension/OPEB expense ($1,286,317) exceeded

contributions to the plans ($877,933) in the current period. (408,384)

Change in net position of governmental activities $ 1,853,080

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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City of Woodway, Texas

Statement of Net Position -
Proprietary Fund

September 30, 2019

Business-type Activities-

Enterprise Fund

Water and
Sewer
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 817,612
Accounts receivable 944,996
Total current assets 1,762,608
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 9,888,988
Capital assets:
Land 397,331
Land improvements 16,261
Buildings and improvements 348,083
Water system facilities 23,038,093
Sewer system facilities 11,502,298
Equipment 2,540,298
Construction in progress 5,744,898
Total capital assets 43,587,262
Less: accumulated depreciation (18,176,129)
Total capital assets, net 25,411,133
Total noncurrent assets 35,300,121
Total assets 37,062,729
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred charge on refundings of debt 105,556
Deferred outflows on net pension liability 256,496
Deferred outflows on OPEB liability 1,418
363,470

(continued)



Packet Pg. 52

Business-type Activities-
Enterprise Fund

Water and
Sewer
Liabilities
Current liabilities: .

Accounts payable $ 1,208,309
Accrued liabilities 122,666
Unearned revenue _ 18,742
Payable from restricted assets:

Customer deposits 125,013
Compensated absences, current portion 36,881
Revenue bonds, current portion 790,000

Total current liabilities 2,301,611

Noncurrent liabilities:

Revenue bonds 15,083,782
Net pension liability 682,974
OPEB liability 20,591
Total noncurrent liabilities 15,787,347

Total liabilities 18,088,958

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows on net pension liability 8,402
Deferred inflows on OPEB liability 1,381
9,783
Net Position

Net investment in capital assets 18,961,193
Restricted for debt service 378,123
Unrestricted (11,858)
Total net position 19,327,458

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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City of Woodway, Texas

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position -
Proprietary Fund

Year Ended September 30, 2019

Business-type activities -

Enterprise Fund
Water and
Sewer
Operating revenue:
Charges for services $ 5,323,909
Miscellaneous 270,092 .
5,594,001
Operating expenses:
Water services 2,539,669
Sewer services 760,532
Customer services 363,750
Depreciation 1,002,622
4,666,573
Operating income 927,428
Nonoperating revenue (expenses):
Interest and other income 357,813
Interest and other charges (411,986)
(54,173)
Income before contributions and transfers 873,255
Capital contributions 608,575
Transfers out (123,685)
Change in net position 1,358,145
Net position, at beginning of year 17,969,313
Net position, at end of year $ 19,327,458

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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City of Woodway, Texas

Statement of Cash Flows -
Proprietary Fund

Year Ended September 30, 2019

Business-type activities-

Enterprise Fund
Water and
Sewer
Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users $ 5,401,442
Payments to suppliers (1,948,908)
Payments to employees (693,805)
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,758,729
Cash flows from noncapital and related financing activities:
Transfers to other funds (123,685)
Net cash used in noncapital and
related financing activities (123,685)
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 32,470
Acquisition of capital assets (5,105,957)
Principal paid on bonds and note payable (1,090,676)
Interest paid on bonds and note payable (460,313)
Net cash used in capital and
related financing activities (6,624,476)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Earnings on investments 325,343
Net cash provided by investing activities 325,343
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (3,664,089)
Cash and cash equivalents, at beginning of year 14,370,689
Cash and cash equivalents, at end of year $ 10,706,600

(continued)
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City of Woodway, Texas

Statement of Cash Flows -
Proprietary Fund
(Continued)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Change in assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in assets:
Accounts receivable
Pension/OPEB related deferred outflows
Increase (decrease) in assets:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Unearned revenue
Customer deposits
Compensated absences
Net pension/OPEB liabilities
Pension/OPEB related deferred inflows

Net cash provided by operating activities

Contribution of capital assets

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Business-type activities-
Enterprise Fund

Water and
Sewer

$ 927,428
1,002,622

(192,559)
(126,685)

917,972

49,616
(4,932)
2,740
154
244,701

(62,328)

§__ 2,758,729

5___ 608,575
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Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2019

Nature of Operations and Reporting Entity

The City of Woodway, Texas (the “City”) is a home-rule municipal corporation organized
and existing under the provisions of the Constitution of the State of Texas. The City
operates under a Council-Manager form of government and provides the following
services: public safety (police and fire), highways and streets, sanitation, health and social
services, culture-recreation, public improvements, planning and zoning, and general
administrative services.

The accompanying financial statements present the City and any of its component units,
entities for which the government is considered financially accountable. The City did not
identify any entities for which it is financially accountable.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Government-wide and fund financial statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the
statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the
primary government. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been
removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for
support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a
given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those
that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revehues
include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit
from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2)
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly
included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds,
and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide
financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual
enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.
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(Continued)

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(®)

(b)

Government-wide and fund financial statements (continued)

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the
government-wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges
between the City’s water and sewer functions and various other functions of the
government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program
revenue reported for the various functions concerned.

Measurement focus, basis of accounting
and financial statement presentation

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable
measurement focus and basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of
resources being measured, such as current financial resources or economic
resources. The basis of accounting indicates the timing of transactions or events for
recognition in the financial statements.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus, and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year
for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon
as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available.
Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current
period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this
purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60
days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded
when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to claims and judgments, are recorded
only when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as
expenditures in governmental funds. Issuance of long-term debt and acquisitions
under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, and interest associated with the current
fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and have been recognized
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Notes to Financial Statements
(Continued)

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b) Measurement focus, basis of accounting
and financial statement presentation _ (continued)

as revenues of the current fiscal period. Fines and miscellaneous revenues are
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the City.

The proprietary fund is reported using the economic resources measurement focus,
and the accrual basis of accounting.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - The general fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It is used
to account for all financial resources of the general government except those
required to be accounted for in another fund.

General Capital Projects Fund — The general capital projects fund provides
funding for non-routine general City projects. These projects are typically
significant in cost. The projects are funded through year-end excess transfers
from the general fund.

Future Capital Street Improvements Fund - The future capital street
improvements fund accounts for property taxes specifically levied for street
improvements.

The City reports the following major proprictary fund:

Water and Sewer Fund - The water and sewer fund accounts for the activities of
the water distribution system, the sewage treatment plant, sewage pumping
stations and collection systems.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants
for goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and
3) capital grants and contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as
general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues
include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating
items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and
producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal
ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the water and sewer
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(Continued)

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b)

(©)

Measurement focus, basis of accounting
and financial statement presentation _ (continued)

enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services. The water and sewer
funds also recognize as operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover
the cost of connecting new customers to the system. Operating expenses for the
enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition
are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Deposits and investments

The City’s cash and cash equivalents for purposes of reporting cash flows of the
proprietary fund consist of cash on hand, demand deposits, and deposits in the City’s
internal cash and public funds investment pools.

State statutes authorize the City to invest in U.S. Treasury and agency securities,
commercial paper, guaranteed investment contracts, repurchase agreements, and
certain governmental investment pools. The City’s local investment policy limits the
City to invest in U.S. Treasury and agency securities, certificates of deposit, fully
collateralized repurchase agreements secured by U.S. Treasury and agency securities,
and public funds investment pools.

Investments are reported at fair value, except for public funds investment pools. The
public funds investment pools operate in accordance with appropriate state laws and
regulations. The reported value of the pool is the same as the amortized cost of the
pool shares.

The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy
established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on
the valvation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant
other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.
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(Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(d)

(©)

)

(8)

Receivables and pavables

Activity between funds that is representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year is referred to as either “due to/from other
funds” or “advances to/from other funds.” All other outstanding balances between
funds are reported as “due to/from other funds.”

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for
uncollectibles. Trade accounts receivable in excess of 120 days comprise the trade

accounts receivable allowance for uncollectibles.

Inventories and prepaid expenses

All inventories are valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market.
Inventories are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and
are recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

Restricted assets

Restricted cash accounts in the water and sewer fund are used to report (1) unspent
bond proceeds, (2) customer deposits, (3) bond reserve funds, and (4) resources set
aside for debt service and capital asset acquisition of the Waco Metropolitan Area
Regional Sewer System, as more fully discussed in Note 4.

Capital assets

Capital assets, which include land, land improvements, buildings and improvements,
infrastructure, water and sewer facilities, equipment, and construction in progress are
reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the
government-wide financial statements. The City has elected to report general
infrastructure assets prospectively from October 1, 2003 as permitted by
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34. Capital assets are
defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $1,000 and
an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical
cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets
are recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation.
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(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(8)

(k)

(1)

Capital assets (continued)

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset
or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets of the City are depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Land improvements 5-40
Buildings and improvements 5-40
Water and sewer systems 5-30
Infrastructure 40
Equipment 3-40

Compensated absences

It is the City’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation
and sick pay benefits. All vacation and sick pay is accrued when incurred in the
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for
compensated absences is reported in the governmental funds only if they have
matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense,
information about the Fiduciary Net Position of the Texas Municipal Retirement
System (“TMRS”) and additions to/deductions from TMRS’s Fiduciary Net Position
have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by TMRS. For this
purpose, plan contributions are recognized in the period that compensation is reported
for the employee, which is when contributions are legally due. Benefit payments and
refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value.
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(Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

)

(k)

)

Other Post-Employment Benefits (“OPEB”)

The fiduciary net position of the City’s defined benefit life insurance plan (OPEB
Plan) has been determined using the flow of economic resources measurement focus
and the full accrual basis of accounting. This includes for purposes of measuring the
net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB, OPEB expense, and information about assets, liabilities, and
additions to/deductions from the OPEB Plan’s net position. Benefit payments are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with benefit terms. There are no
investments as this is a pay-as-you-go plan.

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement
element, deferred outflows of resources, represents consumption of net position that
applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement
element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that
applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
(revenue) until that time.

Long-term obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or
proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method.
Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond
issuance costs are expensed as incurred.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums
and discounts during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported
as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as
other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other
financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds
received, are reported as debt service expenditures.
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(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(m) Fund balance

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund balances classified as restricted
are balances with constraints placed on the use of resources by creditors, grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments. Fund balances classified
as committed can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed
by the City Council through a resolution. Assigned fund balances are constrained by
the intent to be used for specific purposes but are neither restricted nor committed.
Assignments are made by City management based upon City Council direction. The
order of spending available resources is as follows: restricted, committed, assigned,
and unassigned.

The following detail of fund balances by classification is shown for governmental

funds:
General Future
Capital ~ Capital Street Other
General Projects  Improvements Governmental Total
Fund balances:

Nonspendable:

Prepaid expenditures

and other assets $ 16,206 - - - 16,206

Arboretum endowment - - - 586,045 586,045
Restricted for: ‘

Public safety - - - 202,502 202,502

Highways and streets - - 2,845,013 - 2,845,013

Economic development - - - 2,083,748 2,083,748

Debt service - - - 39,763 39,763
Committed to:

Economic development - ' - - 132,856 132,856

Culture and recreation - - - 51,653 51,653

Capital projects - 5,491,990 - 825,734 6,317,724
Assigned to: '

Capital improvements 1,253,782 - - - 1,253,782
Unassigned 2,592,765 - - - 2,592,765

$ 3,862,753 5,491,990 2,845,013 3,922,301 16,122,057
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(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(n) Net position

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, net position
represents the difference between assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities,
and deferred inflows of resources. Net investment in capital assets consists of capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any
borrowing used for the acquisition, construction or improvements of those assets, and
adding back unspent bond proceeds.

Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on its use
either through the enabling legislations adopted by the City or through external
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, laws or regulations of other governments.
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Restricted net position for governmental activities at September 30, 2019 consists of
$586,045 restricted for endowment; $202,502 restricted for public safety; $2,854,253
restricted for highway and streets; $2,085,629 restricted for economic development;
and $48,583 restricted for debt service. Restricted net position for business-type
activities at September 30, 2019 consists of $378,123 restricted for debt service.

(3) Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

(a) Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet and the Government-wide Statement of Net Position

The governmental funds balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund
balances — total governmental funds and net position — governmental activities as
reported in the government-wide statement of net position. One element of that
reconciliation explains, “long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current
period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.” The details of this $4,307,628
difference are as follows:

General obligation bonds ' $ (545,000
Plus: issuance premiums (to be amortized as interest expense) (16,402)
Accrued interest payable (2,725)
Compensated absences (403,642)
Net pension / OPEB liability, and related deferred outflows / inflows

of $1,819,622 (to be amortized as pension expense) (3,339,859)

Net adjustment to reduce find balance - total government
Sfunds to atrive at net position - governmental activities $ (4,307,628)
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(3) Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements (continued)

(b) Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental

Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances and the Government-wide Statement of Activities

The governmental funds’ statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund balances — total
governmental funds and changes in net position of governmental activities as reported
in the government-wide statement of activities. One element of that reconciliation
explains, “The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, notes payable) provides
current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the
principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental
funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also,
governmental funds report the effect of premiums, discounts, and similar items when
debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the
statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the
treatment of long-term debt and related items.” The details of this $773,592
difference are as follows:

Principal repayments on bonds $ 770,000
Amortization of bond premiums 3,592

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund
balances - total governmental funds to arrive at
changes in net position of governmental activities $ 773,592

(4) Undivided Interest in Waco Area
Metropolitan Area Regional Sewer System

During 2004, the City entered into an agreement with the City of Waco, Texas to acquire a
4% undivided interest in the facilities and operations of the Waco Metropolitan Area
Regional Sewer System (“WMARSS”). The City believes that its purchase and operation
of the system will increase the efficiency and effectiveness of providing sewer treatment
services to its citizens,

Under an interlocal agreement, a WMARSS board consists of the city managers from each
of the seven participating cities. The operation and administration of the system is subject
to joint control by the cities through the WMARSS board; however, a separate legal entity
was not created. The agreement allows the cities to pool resources and share the costs,
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(4) Undivided Interest in Waco Area

®)

Metropolitan Area Regional Sewer System (continued)

risks, and rewards of providing services. Further, each city retains an ongoing financial
interest and ongoing financial responsibility in the operations of the system. The City has
reported its share of assets, liabilities, equity, revenues, and expenses that are associated
with this joint activity in its enterprise fund as follows:

Current assets $ 1,300,707
Capital assets 6,826,161
Net position $ 8,126,868
Operating expenses $  (699,430)
Nonoperating revenue 85,423
Change in net position $  (614,007)

As more fully described in Note 18, effective October 1, 2019, the City terminated its
participation in WMARSS and entered into a wholesale wastewater contract with the City
of Waco, Texas.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The City prepares its budget on a basis of accounting that differs from generally accepted
accounting principles. Expenditures under the budgetary basis of accounting include all
purchase orders and contracts executed during the year and liquidated within 90 days of the
end of the fiscal year.

The following procedures are implemented by the City in establishing budgetary data:

* Prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, the Mayor submits to the City Council a
proposed budget for the fiscal year beginning on the following October 1. The
operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing those
expenditures.

» Public hearings are conducted at which all interested persons' comments concerning the
budget are heard.

* The budgets are then legally enacted by the City Council. Formal budgetary
integration is employed for the general fund and debt service fund.

» Budget revisions are made during the year.
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(5) Budgets and Budgetary Accounting (continued)

(6)

* Actual expenditures and operating transfers out may not legally exceed budget
appropriations at the individual function level. However, budgetary control is
maintained at the department level.

Transfers out exceeded appropriations for the general fund for the year ended
September 30, 2019 by $850,000. This over-expenditure was funded by lower than
anticipated expenditures in other functions within the general fund.

Deposits and Investments

A summary of the City’s cash and cash equivalents at September 30, 2019 follows:

Cash in bank and certificates of deposit $ 15,690,733
Undivided interest in bank deposits held

by another government 1,300,737
Public funds investments pools:

Texas Local Government Investment Pool ("TexPool") 1,211,856

Texas Short Term Asset Reserve Fund ("TexStar") 8,511,010
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 26,714,336

In January 2016, the City received a bequest in the amount of $465,488 to establish an
endowment fund for the Arboretum, with the stipulation that the corpus remain intact and
that 10% of the annual income be added to the corpus to guard against inflation. At
September 30, 2019, the City’s investments for the endowment fund consisted of the
following, all of which are valued using quoted market prices (Level 1):

Money market mutual funds $ 38,009
Equity mutual funds ' 87,473
Common stocks 235,032
Fixed mutual funds 209,283
Total investments $ 569,797

The public funds investment pools have been created pursuant to the Interlocal Corporation
Act of the State of Texas. The City has delegated the authority to hold legal title to

TexPool and TexStar, as custodians and to make investment purchases with the City’s
funds.
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(6) Deposits and Investments (continued)

TexPool. The State Comptroller of Public Accounts (the “Comptroller”) is the sole officer,
director, and shareholder of the Texas Treasury Safekeeping Trust Company (the “Trust
Company”’) which is authorized to operate TexPool. Additionally, the Comptroller has
established an advisory board composed of both participants in TexPool and other persons
who do not have a business relationship with TexPool. The advisory board members
review the investment policy and management fee structure. There are no maximum
transaction amounts and withdrawals from TexPool may be made daily. TexPool uses
amortized cost rather than fair value to report net assets share prices.

TexStar. TexStar is a Texas public funds investment pool that is co-administered by J.P.
Morgan Chase and First Southwest Asset Management, Inc. TexStar is managed by a five-
member board comprised of three representatives of eligible governmental entities and one
member designated by each of the co-administrators. There are no maximum transaction
amounts and withdrawals from TexStar may be made daily. TexStar uses amortized cost
rather than fair value to report net assets share prices

Custodial Credit Risk. The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of
the failure of a depository financial institution, a government will not be able to recover
deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an
outside party. City policy requires all deposits to be fully secured in accordance with the
Texas Government Code, Chapter 2257, by either surety bonds, letters of credit of the
United States or its agencies and instrumentalities, or by eligible securities held by an
independent third-party custodian.

-For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the City would not be able to recover the value of its investment or
collateralized securities that are in the possession of an outside third party. The City’s
investment policy requires that the purchase of investment securities be settled on a
delivery basis and that ownership of all securities be perfected in the name of the City.

Interest Rate Risk. In accordance with its investment policy, the City manages its exposure
to declines in fair value by: (a) structuring the investment portfolio so that investments
mature to meet cash requirements for ongoing operations, (b) investing operating funds
primarily in shorter-term securities, (c) diversifying maturities and staggering purchase
dates to minimize the impact of market movements over time. It is the City’s policy not to
invest in securities maturing more than one year from the date of purchase. For repurchase
agreements, the maximum maturity is 90 days. At September 30, 2019, the weighted
average maturity of TexPool and TexStar is 36 days and 22 days, respectively.
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Deposits and Investments (continued)

Credit risk. The City’s investment policy limits investments in government investment
pools and money market mutual funds to those that are rated no lower than AAA or an
equivalent rating by at least one nationally recognized rating service. At
September 30, 2019, TexPool and TexStar are rated AAAm by Standard & Poor’s.

Receivables

Receivables as of September 30, 2019 for the City’s individual major funds and nonmajor

funds in the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are
as follows:

Future Water
Capital Street Other and
General  Improvements Governmental Sewer Total
Receivables:
Property taxes $ 75122 9,240 10,701 - 95,063
Sales and franchise
taxes 491,893 - - - 491,893
Hotel occupancy taxes - - 105,237 - 105,237
Accounts 168,686 - - 1,092,129 1,260,815
Other 2,614 - 268 - 2,882
Gross receivables 738,315 9,240 116,206 1,092,129 1,955,890
Less: allowance for
uncollectibles 30,704 - - 147,133 177,837
$ 707611 9,240 116,206 944,996 1,778,053

The City’s property tax is levied each October 1 on the assessed value listed as of the prior
January 1 for all real and business personal property located in the City. The net assessed
value upon which the 2018 levy was based was $1,159,873,812.

Taxes are due by January 31 following the October 1 levy date. Current tax collections for
the year ended September 30, 2019 were 99.5% of the tax levy.

Unearned Revenue

Governmental funds report unearned revenue in connection with resources that have been
received, but not yet earned. At the end of the current fiscal year, unearned revenue of
$58,125 reported in the governmental funds related to Woodway Family Center fees
collected but not yet earned as of year-end. Additionally, unearned revenue of $18,742
reported in the water and sewer fund related to fees collected in advance for the sale of
reuse water.
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(9) Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2019 was as follows:

Governmental activities:

Capital assets,
not depreciated:
Land
Intangible assets
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not
being depreciated

Capital assets,
being depreciated:
Land improvements
Buildings and
improvements
Infrastructure
Vehicles and equipment
Total capital assets
being depreciated

Less: accumulated
depreciation for:
Land improvements
Buildings and
improvements
Infrastructure
Vehicles and equipment
Total accumulated
depreciation

Total capital assets,
being depreciated, net

Governmental activities
capital assets, net

24
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Balance Balance

October 1, September 30,
2018 Additions Deletions 2019

737,279 - - 737,279
199,900 - - 199,900
43,468 522,265 - 565,733
980,647 522,265 - 1,502,912
875,282 - - 875,282
9,660,139 140,119 - 9,800,258
13,866,175 497,925 - 14,364,100
8,775,979 491,827 (130,954) 9,136,852
33,177,575 1,129,871 (130,954) 34,176,492
(523,896) (25,409) - (549,305)
(3,868,453) (355,207) - (4,223,660)
(2,861,343) (359,767) - (3,221,610)
(6,224,715) (550,871) 130,954 (6,644,632)
(13,478,907) (1,291,254) 130,954 (14,639,207)
19,698,668 (161,383) - 19,537,285
20,679,315 360,882 - 21,040,197
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Capital Assets (continued)

Business-type activities:

Capital assets,
not depreciated:
Land

Construction in progress

Total capital assets not
being depreciated

Capital assets,
being depreciated:
Land improvements

Buildings and improvements

Water system facilities

Sewer system facilities

Vehicles and equipment
Total capital assets

being depreciated

Less accumulated
depreciation for:
Land improvements

Buildings and improvements

Water system facilities
Sewer system facilities
Vehicles and equipment
Total accumulated
depreciation

Total capital assets,
being depreciated, net

Business-type activities
capital assets, net

City of Woodway, Texas
Notes to Financial Statements
(Continued)
Balance Balance
October 1, September 30,
2018 Additions Deletions 2019
397,331 - - 397,331
1,425,318 4,332,740 (13,160) 5,744,898
1,822,649 4,332,740 (13,160) 6,142,229
16,261 - - 16,261
348,083 - - 348,083
22,283,319 754,774 - 23,038,093
11,163,687 338,611 - 11,502,298
2,329,805 301,567 (91,074) 2,540,298
36,141,155 1,394,952 (91,074) 37,445,033
(5,370) (407) - (5,777)
(187,121) (8,990) - (196,111)
(10,828,452) (506,205) - (11,334,657)
(4,926,103) (360,003) - (5,286,106)
(1,317,535) (127,017) 91,074 (1,353,478)
(17,264,581) (1,002,622) 91,074 (18,176,129)
18,876,574 392,330 - 19,268,904
$ 20,699,223 4,725,070 (13,160) 25,411,133
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(9) Capital Assets (continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the City as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government $ 25,351
Public safety 470,779
Highways and streets 368,590
Economic and physical development 159,046
Culture and recreation 267,488
Total depreciation expense -
governmental activities $ 1,291,254

Business-type activities:
Water and sewer $ 1,002,622

Construction Commitments

The City has active construction projects as of September 30, 2019. At yéar-end, the
City’s commitments with contractors are as follows:

Spent Remaining
Project to Date Commitments
Governmental activities:
Design and reconstruction of streets $ 170,309 168,652
Street Micro-Seal Surfacing improvements 273,021 21,663
Woodway Family Center 102,810 24,709
Carleen Bright Arboretum Fountain 19,593 4,200
Total $ 565,733 219,224
Business-type activities:
McGregor Waterline project $ 993,879 -
Sewer projects - WMARSS 2,366,640 -
Fairway Sewer Interceptor Replacement 2,324,600 1,063,653
Other water and sewer projects 59,779 112,151

$ 5,744,898 1,175,804
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Capital Assets (continued)

The City has entered into a joint agreement with the City of McGregor, Texas for the
McGregor waterline project, and the City has completely funded its portion of the total
cost of the project as of September 30, 2019. Also, as more fully described in Note 18,
effective October 1, 2019, the City terminated its participation in WMARSS and entered
into a wholesale wastewater contract with the City of Waco, Texas. The governmental
activities commitments will be financed with available resources. The Fairway Sewer
Interception Replacement and other water and sewer projects with be funded with bond
proceeds.

(10) Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term liabilities consist of bonded indebtedness, compensated absences, a net pension
liability, and a total OPEB liability. The City issues general obligation bonds to provide
funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities and pledges income
derived from the acquired or constructed assets to pay debt service. Revenue bonds have
been issued for the business-type activities. For the governmental activities, compensated
absences, the net pension liability, and total OPEB liability are generally liquidated by the
general fund and the enterprise fund.

Long-term liability activity for the year ended September 30, 2019, was as follows:

October 1, September 30, Due Within
2018 Additions Retirements 2019 One Year
Governmental activities:
General obligation bonds $ 1,315,000 - (770,000) 545,000 80,000
Plus: deferred premiums 19,994 - (3,592) 16,402 -
Total bonds payable 1,334,994 - (773,592) 561,402 80,000
Compensated absences 371,510 371,828 (339,696) 403,642 403,642
Net pension liability 3,214,647 1,793,831 - 5,008,478 -
Total OPEB liability 150,357 13,426 (12,780) 151,003 -
$ 5,071,508 2,179,085 (1,126,068) 6,124,525 483,642
Business-type activities:
Bonds payable:
Revenue bonds $ 16,155,000 - (970,000) 15,185,000 790,000
Plus: deferred premiums 749,319 - (60,537) 688,782 -
Total bonds payable 16,904,319 - (1,030,537) 15,873,782 790,000
Note payable 120,676 - (120,676) - -
Compensated absences 36,727 30,411 (30,257) 36,881 36,881
Net pension liability 438,361 244,613 - 682,974 -
Total OPEB liability 20,503 1,831 (1,743) 20,591 -

$ 17,520,586 276,855 (1,183,213) 16,614,228 826,881
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(10) Long-Term Liabilities (continued)

General obligation bonds payable at September 30, 2019, are comprised of the following
individual issues:

$1,815,000 - 2011 combination tax and revenue certificates
of obligation due in annual installments of $80,000 to
$100,000 through August 15, 2025, interest at 4.00% $ 545,000

$__545,000

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for governmental activities are as follows:

Year Ended
September 30, Principal Interest
2020 $ 80,000 21,800
2021 85,000 18,600
2022 90,000 15,200
2023 95,000 11,600
2024 95,000 7,800
2025 100,000 4,000

$ 545,000 79,000

For business-type activities, revenue bonds outstanding at September 30, 2019 are
comprised of the following individual issues:

$2,705,000 - 2011 general obligation refunding bond due in
annual installments of $90,000 to $430,000 through August 15,
2021, interest at 2% to 4% $ 200,000

$3,400,000 - 2016 general obligation refunding bond due in
annual installments of $35,000 to $375,000 through
September 30, 2027, interest at 2% to 3% 2,750,000
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(10) Long-Term Liabilities (continued)

$3,670,000 - 2016 combination tax and revenue cetificate of obligation
due in annual installments of $90,000 to $430,000 through
September 30, 2031, interest at 2% to 2.25% $ 3,035,000

$9,200,000 - 2017 combination tax and revenue cetificate of obligation
due in annual installments of $155,000 to $545,000 through
August 15, 2042, interest at 3% to 4% 9,200,000

$ 15,185,000

For business-type activities, note payable to the City of Waco, Texas of $120,676 was paid
in full during 2019.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for revenue bonds are as follows:

Year Ended
September 30, Principal Interest

2020 $ 790,000 432,662
2021 815,000 410,262
2022 835,000 387,062
2023 860,000 364,422
2024 885,000 338,162

2025-2029 4,290,000 1,352,910

2030-2034 2,815,000 849,211

2035-2039 2,315,000 499,777

2040-2042 1,580,000 111,825

$ 15,185,000 4,746,293

The City is required under provisions of the revenue bond ordinances to maintain interest
and sinking funds adequate for payments of principal and interest and has pledged certain
net operating revenues (after the payment of operation and maintenance expenses) of the
water and sewer fund to repay $16.1 million in revenue bonds issued from 2007 to 2017.
Proceeds from the bonds provided financing for the construction of water and sewer system
facilities. The total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds is
$18.3 million. Principal and interest paid for the current year (including defeased debt) and
total of pledged net operating revenues of the water and sewer fund were $1,770,561 and
$936,282, respectively. The City is in compliance with all significant financial limitations
and restrictions mentioned above.
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(11) Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plan Description - The City participates as one of 887 plans in the nontraditional, joint
contributory, hybrid defined benefit pension plan administered by the Texas Municipal
Retirement System (“TMRS”). TMRS is an agency created by the State of Texas and
administered in accordance with the TMRS Act, Subtitle G, Title 8, Texas Government
Code (the “TMRS Act”) as an agent multiple-employer retirement system for municipal
employees in the State of Texas. The TMRS Act places the general administration and
management of the System with a six-member Board of Trustees. Although the Governor,
with the advice and consent of the Senate, appoints the Board, TMRS is not fiscally
dependent on the State of Texas. TMRS’s defined benefit pension plan is a tax qualified
plan under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. TMRS issues a publicly available
comprehensive annual financial report (“CAFR”) that can be obtained at www.tmrs.com.

All eligible employees of the City are required to participate in TMRS.

Benefits Provided - TMRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit
provisions are adopted by the governing body of the City, within the options available in
the state statutes governing TMRS.

At retirement, the benefit is calculated as if the sum of the employee’s contributions, with
interest, and the City-financed monetary credits, with interest, were used to purchase an
annuity. Members may choose to receive their retirement benefit in one of seven payment
options. Members may also choose to receive a portion of their benefit as a Partial Lump
Sum Distribution in an amount equal to 12, 24, or 36 monthly payments, which cannot
exceed 75% of the member’s deposits and interest.

Employees covered by benefit terms: At the December 31, 2018 valuation and measure-
ment date, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries current receiving benefits 43
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 65
Active employees 85

193

Contributions - The contribution rates for employees in TMRS are either 5%, 6%, or 7% of
employee gross earnings, and the City matching percentages are either 100%, 150%, or
200%, both as adopted by the governing body of the City. - Under the state law governing
TMRS, the contribution rate for each city is determined annually by the actuary, using the
Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated
amount necessary to finance the cost of benefits earned by employees during the year, with
an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued lability.
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(11) Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

Employees for the City were required to contribute 7% of their annual gross earnings
during the fiscal year. The contribution rates for the City were 16.40% and 16.46% in
calendar years 2018 and 2019, respectively. The City’s contributions to TMRS for the year
ended September 30, 2019 were $876,867 and were equal to the required contributions.

Net Pension Liability - The City’s net pension liability was measured as of
December 31, 2018, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

Actuarial assumptions: The total pension liability in the December 31, 2018 actuarial
valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions:

Inflation 2.5% per year
Overall payroll growth 3.0% per year
Investment rate of return 6.75%, net of pension plan

investment expense, including inflation

Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active members,
retirees, and beneficiaries were based on the gender-distinct RP2000 Combined Healthy
Mortality Tables with Blue Collar Adjustment, with male rates multiplied by 109% and
female rates multiplied by 103%. The rates are projected on a fully generational basis by
scale BB to account for future mortality improvements. For disabled annuitants, the
gender-distinct RP2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustment
are used, with male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103% with a
3-year set forward for both males and females. In addition, a 3% minimum mortality rate
is applied to reflect the impairment for younger members who become disabled. The rates
are projected on a fully generational basis by scale BB to account for the future mortality
improvements subject to the 3% floor.

The actuarial assumptions were developed primarily from the actuarial investigation of the
experience of TMRS over the four year period from December 31, 2010 to December 31,
2014. They were adopted in 2015 and first used in the December 31, 2015 actuarial
valuation. The post-retirement mortality assumption for healthy annuitants and Annuity
Purchase Rate (“APRs”) are based on the Mortality Experience Investigation Study
covering 2009 through 2011 and dated December 31, 2013. In conjunction with these
changes first used in the December 31, 2013 valuation, TMRS adopted the Entry Age
Normal actuarial cost method and a one-time change to the amortization policy. Plan
assets are managed on a total return basis with an emphasis on both capital appreciation as
well as the production of income, in order to satisfy the short-term and long-term funding
needs of TMRS.
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The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for
each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate
of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation. In determining their best estimate of a
recommended investment return assumption under the various alternative asset allocation
portfolios, the actuarial firm focused on the area between (1) arithmetic mean (aggressive)
without an adjustment for time (conservative) and (2) the geometric mean (conservative)
with an adjustment for time (aggressive). The target allocation and best estimates of
arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following

table:

Long-Term Expected Real

Asset Class Target Allocation Rate of Return (Arithmetic)
Domestic Equity 17.5% 4.30%
International Equity 17.5% 6.10%
Core Fixed Income 10.0% 1.00%
Non-Core Fixed Income 20.0% 3.39%
Real Return 10.0% 3.78%
Real Estate 10.0% 4.44%
Absolute Return 10.0% 3.56%
Private Equity 5.0% 7.75%

Totals 100.0%

Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.75%.
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee
and employer contributions will be made at the rates specified in statute. Based on that
assumption, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make
all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore,
the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
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Changes in the Net Pension Liability
Increase (Decrease)
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability
@) (b) (@) - (b)
Balance at December 31,2017 $ 26,828,012 23,175,004 3,653,008
Changes for the year;
Service cost 809,551 - 809,551
Interest 1,789,433 - 1,789,433
Difference between expected and
actual experience (88,985) - (88,985)
Contributions - employer - 827,205 (827,205)
Contributions - employee - 353,075 (353,075)
Net investment income - (694,608) 694,608
Benefit payments, including refunds
of employee contributions (1,445,329) (1,445,329) -
Administrative expense - (13,417) 13,417
Other changes - (700) 700
Net changes 1,064,670 (973,774) 2,038,444
Balance at December 31,2018 $ 27,892,682 22,201,230 5,691,452

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate: The following
presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 6.75%, as
well as what the City’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount
rate that is one percentage point lower (5.75%) or one percentage point higher (7.75%)
than the current rate:

1% Decrease in Current 1% Increase in
Discount Rate Discount Discount Rate
(5.75%) Rate (6.75%) (7.75%)
City's net pension liability $ 10,020,894 5,691,452 2,187,784

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position: Detailed information about the pension plan’s
Fiduciary Net Position is available in a separately-issued TMRS financial report. That
report may be obtained on the Internet at www.tmrs.com.
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Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources
and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

For the year ended September 30, 2019, the City recognized pension expense of
$1,321,395. At September 30, 2019, the City reported deferred outflows and inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date $ 630,524 -
Differences between expected and actual experience 300,296 67,748
Change in assumptions - 2,270
Difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments 1,206,641 -
Total $ 2,137,461 70,018

The $630,524 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the
net pension liability for the year ending September 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as
deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in
pension expense as follows:

Year Ended December 31:
2019 $ 546,489
2020 262,892
2021 179,790
2022 447,748

5 1436919
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(12) Other Post-Employment Benefits (“OPEB”)

Plan Description - The City also participates in a defined benefit group term life insurance
plan administered by the Texas Municipal Retirement System (“TMRS”) known as the
Supplemental Death Benefits Fund (“SDBF”). The City elected, by ordinance, to provide
group term life insurance coverage to both current and retired employees. The City may
terminate coverage under and discontinue participation in the SDBF by adopting an
ordinance before November 1 of any year to be effective the following January 1. As the
TMRS SDBF covers both active and retired members, with no segregation of assets, the
SDBF does not meet the definition of a trust under paragraph 4 of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) No 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions (i.e. no assets are accumulated for OPEB).
As such, the SDBF is considered to be a single-employer unfunded OPEB plan with benefit
payments treated as being equal to the City’s yearly contributions for retirees.

Benefits Provided - The death benefit for active employees provides a lump-sum payment
approximately equal to the employee’s annual salary (calculated based on the employee’s
actual earnings, for the 12-month period preceding the month of death). The death benefit
for retirees is a fixed amount of $7,500.

Employees covered by benefit terms: At the December 31, 2018 valuation and measure-
ment date, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees current receiving benefits 25

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 9

Active employees _ 85
119

Contributions - The City contributes to the SDBF at a contractually required rate as
determined by an annual actuarial valuation. The rate is equal to the cost of providing one-
year term life insurance. The funding policy for the SDBF program is to assure that
adequate resources are available to meet all death benefit payments for the upcoming year.
The intent is not to pre-fund retiree term life insurance during employees’ entire careers.

The City’s contributions to the SDBF for the year ended September 30, 2019 were $1,066,
respectively, which equaled the required contribution for the year.

Total OPEB Liability - The City’s total OPEB liability was measured as of
December 31, 2018, and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.
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Actuarial assumptions: The total OPEB liability in the December 31, 2018 actuarial
valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions:

Inflation 2.5% per year
Salary increases 3.5% to 10.5% per year, including inflation
Discount rate 3.71% (based on the Fidelity Index’s “20-Year

Municipal GO AA index” rate as of
December 31, 2017

Overall payroll growth 3.0% per year
Administrative expenses All administrative expenses are paid through
the TMRS Pension Trust

Mortality rates for service retirees were based on the RP2000 Combined Mortality Table
with Blue Collar Adjustment, with male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates
multiplied by 103% and projected on a fully generational basis with a scale BB. For
disabled retirees, the RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustment
were used with male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103% with a
3-year set-forward for both males and females. The rates are projected on a fully
generational basis with a scale BB to account for the future mortality improvements subject
to the 3% floor.

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2018 valuation were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the period December 31, 2010 to December 31,
2014,

The changes in the total OPEB liability for the measurement period ending December 31,
2018 was as follows

Total OPEB
Liability
Balance at December 31, 2017 $ 170,860
Changes for the year:
Service cost 8,575
Interest 5,781
Differences between expected and actual experience 901
Changes in assumptions or other inputs (13,514)
Benefit payments ** (1,009)
Net changes 734
Balance at December 31, 2018 $ 171,594

**Due to the SDBF being considered an unfunded OPEB plan under GASB 75, benefit
payments are treated as being equal to the employer’s yearly contribution for
retirees.

4
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Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate: The following
presents the total OPEB liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 3.71%, as
well as what the City’s total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount
rate that is one percentage point lower (2.71%) or one percentage point higher (4.71%)
than the current rate:

1% Decrease in Current 1% Increase in
Discount Rate Discount Discount Rate
(2.71%) Rate (3.71%) (4.71%)
City's total OPEB liability $ 208,362 171,594 143,416

OPEB Expense and Deferred Qutflows of Resources
and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the year ended September 30, 2019, the City recognized OPEB expense of $14,655. At
September 30, 2019, the City reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to
OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date $ 766 -
Differnces between expected and actual experience 767
Change in assumptions 10,286 11,509
Total $ 11,819 11,509

The $766 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the
total OPEB liability for the year ending September 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as
deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB
expense as follows:
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Year Ended December 31:
2019 $ 299
2020 v 299
2021 299
2022 299
2023 (265)
Thereafter (1,387)

$ (456)

(13) Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

The statement of financial position and the balance sheet inctudes the following deferred
outflows/inflows of resources at September 30, 2019:

Statement of Net Position Balance Sheet
Future
Capital
Business- Street ~ Other
Governmental Type Improve- Govern-
Activities Activities General ments mental
Deferred outflows of resources:
Deferred charge
on refunding $ - 105,556 - - -
Net pension liability 1,880,965 256,496 - - -
Total OPEB liability 10,401 1,418 - - -

$ 1,891,366 363,470 - - -

Deferred inflows of resources:

Unavailable property

tax revenues $ - - 75,122 9,240 10,701
Net pension liability 61,616 8,402 - - -
Total OPEB liability 10,128 1,381 - - -

$ 71,744 9,783 75,122 9,240 10,701

Deferred Outflows of Resources: The deferred charge on refunding, resulting from the
difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price, is amortized as
interest expense over the shorter of the life of the refunded debt or refunding debt. Post-
measurement date contributions will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension/OPEB
liability in the following fiscal year. The pension/OPEB related deferred amounts will be
amortized into pension/OPEB expense.
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Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources (continued)

Deferred Inflows of Resources: The governmental funds, under the modified accrual basis
of accounting, report unavailable revenues from property taxes, which is deferred and
recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available. The
pension/OPEB amounts will be amortized into pension/OPEB expense.

Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets, errors and omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters.
The City has joined together with other governments in Texas to form the Texas Municipal
League Intergovernmental Risk Pool, a public entity risk pool currently operating as a
common risk management and insurance program for liability, property, and workmen’s
compensation coverages. The City pays a quarterly contribution to the pool for its
insurance coverage. The agreement for formation of the Texas Municipal League
Intergovernmental Risk Pool provides that the Pool will be self-sustaining through member
contributions and will reinsure through commercial companies for claims in excess of
specific limits. :

The Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool has published its own financial
report, which can be obtained by writing the Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental
Risk Pool, 1821 Rutherford Lane, Austin, Texas 78754.

Interfund Transfers

Following is a summary of transfers for the year ended September 30, 2019.

Transfers In

General Nonmajor
Capital Govern-
General Projects mental Total
Transfers out:
General 8 - 850,000 307,585 1,157,585
Nonmajor governmental 177,631 - - 177,631
Water and sewer 123,685 .- - 123,685

Total transfers $ 301,316 850,000 307,585 1,458,901
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Interfund Transfers (continued)

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund responsible for collecting them to
the fund responsible for expending them as required by statute or budget, and (2) move
unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund to finance various programs accounted
for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations. Also, the City made
payments from the water and sewer fund to the general fund in lieu of taxes. The City
reported these payments as transfers.

Commitments and Contingencies

The City has contracted with private companies for the collection and disposal of refuse.
The City negotiated a collection contract, with an effective date of June 1, 2017, for a term
of five years, with the option to renew and extend the contract for two successive 2-year
terms. Under the terms of the contract, the City will be responsible for billing and
collection of all waste collection fees and will pay collection fees to the companies on a
monthly basis as authorized in the contract regardless of the amount collected from
residents.

In order to provide a long-term, reliable water supply, the City has become a member of the
Bluebonnet Water Supply Corporation (“Bluebonnet”). As a member of Bluebonnet, the
City will be able to provide input into the operations as one of eight members of the Board.
Under the agreement, the City will be required to purchase a proportional amount of water
processed by Bluebonnet. In addition, an agreement has been entered into with the City of
Waco requiring Waco to purchase Woodway’s share of water purchased from Bluebonnet
and requiring Woodway to purchase an equal amount of water from Waco. All
transactions will be at the rates established by the Board of Bluebonnet.

There are currently several claims and lawsuits pending against the City. It is the opinion
of City management that there is no pending litigation against the City that, if decided
against the City, would have a material adverse effect upon the operations of the City.

Tax Abatements

The City of Woodway negotiates property tax abatements on an individual basis. All
abatements are governed by Section 312 of the Texas Tax Code and the City of Woodway
Code of Ordinances which are revised and adopted every two years in accordance with
state law. These guidelines permit the City to abate property taxes for a variety of
economic development purposes such as business relocation, retention, and expansion and
include abatements for real and personal property improvements.

The City of Woodway had not granted any tax abatements as of September 30, 2019,
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City of Woodway, Texas

Notes to Financial Statements
(Continued)

(18) Subsequent Event

(19)

Effective October 1, 2019, the City of Waco executed a termination agreement with the
City, the City of Bellmead, Texas, the City of Hewitt, Texas, the City of Lacy Lakeview,
Texas, the City of Lorena, Texas, and the City of Robinson, Texas, (collectively, the
participating cities in WMARSS). The agreement terminates the operation and
management agreements, discontinues all WMARSS operations, accepts the conveyance of
WMARRS assets to the City of Waco, and allows the conveyance of certain WMARSS
easements to the City of Waco and the City of Lorena. Simultaneously, the City entered
into a wholesale wastewater contract with the City of Waco to become a customer of the
City of Waco’s solely-owned wastewater system. The City of Waco did not pay cash
consideration or assume bonded indebtedness of the participating cities in return for the
transfer of ownership interests. Under the existing arrangement, WMARSS participating
cities have shared in percentages of the operations and maintenance and capital project
expenditures. Under the new arrangement, costs will be recovered by the City of Waco
through rates set for operations and maintenance, capital improvements, and capacity
expansion. A calculation will be performed by the City of Waco to determine whether
there are amounts of certain surplus working capital reserves available to be returned to the
participating cities. ‘

Authoritative Pronouncements Not Yet Effective

A summary of pronouncements issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) which may impact the City but are not yet effective follows. The City has not yet

- determined the effects of the adoption of these pronouncements on the financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities (issued January 2017) — The objective of this
statement is to enhance consistency and comparability by (1) establishing specific criteria
for identifying activities that should be reported as fiduciary activities and (2) clarifying
whether and how business-type activities should report their fiduciary activities. The

requirements of this statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning
after December 15, 2018.

GASB Statement No. 87, Leases (issued June 2017) — The objective of this statement is to
increase the usefulness of governments’ financial statements by requiring reporting of
certain lease liabilities that currently are not reported. It will enhance comparability of
financial statements among governments by requiring lessees and lessors to report leases
under a single model. The statement will also require notes to financial statements related
to the timing, significance, and purpose of a government’s leasing arrangements. The
requirements of this statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning
after December 15, 2019.
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City of Woodway, Texas
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance —
Budget and Actual — General Fund — Budget Basis
Year Ended September 30, 2019
Variance
Original Final with Final
Budget Budget Actual Budget
Revenue:
Taxes: ‘
Property $ 4,503,232 4,503,232 4,544,178 40,946
Sales 2,640,000 2,640,000 2,816,346 176,346
Franchise 756,000 756,000 725,949 (30,051)
License and permits 148,000 148,000 117,763 (30,237)
Intergovernmental - - 20,237 20,237
Charges for services 1,734,435 1,734,435 1,807,648 73,213
Fines 185,000 185,000 219,513 34,513
Investment earnings 40,000 40,000 96,326 56,326
Contributions and donations - - 25,591 25,591
Miscellaneous 72,500 72,500 68,462 (4,038)
Total revenue 10,079,167 10,079,167 10,442,013 362,846
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 1,662,203 1,662,203 1,401,812 260,391
Public safety 5,916,276 5,916,276 5,387,705 528,571
Highways and streets 495,777 495,777 433,621 62,156
Sanitation 920,000 920,000 938,833 (18,833)
Economic development 502,085 502,085 468,675 33,410
Cultural and recreation 879,917 879,917 811,854 68,0603
Total expenditures 10,376,258 10,376,258 9,442,500 933,758
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over (under) expenditures (297,091) (297,091) 999,513 1,296,604
Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds on sale of capital assets - - 35,335 35,335
Transfers in 341,345 341,345 301,316 (40,029)
Transfers out (307,585) (307,585) (1,157,585) (850,000)
Total other financing sources (uses) 33,760 33,760 (820,934) (854,694)
Change in fund balance (263,331) (263,331) 178,579 441,910
Fund balance, at beginning of year 3,684,174 3,684,174 3,684,174 -
Fund balance, at end of year $ 3,420,843 3,420,843 3,862,753 441,910

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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City of Woodway, Texas

Note to Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Actual —
General Fund

Year Ended September 30, 2019

(1) Budgetary Basis

The City prepares its budget on a basis of accounting that differs from generally accepted
accounting principles (“GAAP”). The actual results of operations are presented in the
statement of revenue, expenses and changes in fund equity — budget and actual — general
fund on the budgetary basis to provide a meaningful comparison of actual results.

The budgetary basis of accounting includes reporting as expenditures all purchase orders
and contracts executed during the year and liquidated within 90 days of the end of the
fiscal year. There were no adjustments necessary to convert the results of operations at the
end of the year from the GAAP basis of accounting to the budgetary basis of accounting.

Transfers out exceeded appropriations for the general fund for the year ended
September 30, 2019 by $850,000. This over-expenditure was funded by lower than
anticipated expenditures in other functions within the general fund.
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City of Woodway, Texas
Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios
Last Five Measurement Dates
December 31,
Total Pension Liability 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Service cost $ 809,551 804,076 747,227 671,680 603,865
Interest (on the Total Pension Liability) 1,789,433 1,663,016 1,538,966 1,481,245 1,391,288
Difference between expected
and actual experience (88,985) 432,982 151,146 242,961 25,877
Change of assumptions - - - (29,774) -
Benefit payments, including refunds of
employee contributions (1,445,329) (614,593) (641,392) (888,668) (650,991)
Net change in Total Pension Liability 1,064,670 2,285,481 1,795,947 1,477,444 1,370,039
Total Pension Liability - beginning 26,828,012 24,542,531 22,746,584 21,269,140 19,899,101
Total Pension Liability - ending (a) $ 27,892,682 26,828,012 24,542,531 22,746,584 21,269,140
Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - employer $ 827,205 821,922 718,365 692,941 656,758
Contributions - employee 353,075 347,012 320,698 303,731 281,525
Net investment income (694,608) 2,756,034 1,234,383 26,775 967,001
Benefit payments, including refunds of
employee contributions (1,445,329) (614,593) (641,392) (888,668) (650,991)
Administrative expense (13,417) (14,279) (13,939) (16,308) (10,094)
Other (700) (723) (751) (805) (830)
Net change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position (973,774) 3,295,373 1,617,364 117,666 1,243,369
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - beginning 23,175,004 19,879,631 18,262,267 18,144,601 16,901,232
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - ending (b) $ 22,201,230 23,175,004 19,879,631 18,262,267 18,144,601
Net Pension Liability - ending (a) - (b) $ 5,691,452 3,653,008 4,662,900 4,484,317 3,124,539
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a
percentage of Total Pension Liability 79.60% 86.38% 81.00% 80.29% 85.31%
Covered payroll $ 5,043,934 4,957,313 4,581,406 4,339,019 4,021,790
Net Pension Liability as a percentage
of covered payroll 112.84% 73.69% 101.78% 103.35% 77.69%
Note: Effective October 1, 2014, the City adopted the provisions of Governmental

Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68. Information for
years prior to 2014 is not available.

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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City of Woodway, Texas
Schedule of Pension Contributions
Fiscal Years Ended
September 30,
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Actuarially determined contribution $ 876,867 821,922 802,217 710,979 657,199
Contributions in relation to the actuarially

determined contribution 876,867 821,922 802,217 710,979 657,199
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - - - - -
Covered payroll- $ 5,332,738 4,997,194 4,864,181 4,468,451 4,132,337
Contributions as a percentage of covered

payroll 16.44% 16.45% 16.49% 15.91% 15.90%

‘Notes to Schedule of Pension Contributions

Valuation Date:

Note Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated
as of December 31 and become effective in January,
13 months later.

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed

Remaining Amortization Period 27 years

Asset Valuation Method 10 Year smoothed market; 15% soft corridor

Inflation 2.5%

Salary Increases 3.50% to 10.50%, including inflation

Investment Rate of Return 6.75%

Retirement Age Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the City’s

plan of benefits. Last updated for the 2015 valuation pursuant
to an experience study of the period 2010 — 2014

Mortality RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar
adjustment with male rates multiplied by 109% and female
rates multiplied by 103% and projected on a fully
generational basis with scale BB

Other There were no benefit changes during the year.

Note: The City implemented GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Pensions, An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27, effective October 1, 2014,
Information for years prior to 2015 is not available.

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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City of Woodway, Texas
Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
Last Two Measurement Dates
December 31,

Total OPEB Liability 2018 2017
Service cost $ 8,575 6,940
Interest (on the Total OPEB Liability) 5,781 5,591
Differences between expected and actual experience 901 -
Change of assumptions (13,514) 14,626
Benefit payments ** (1,009) (1,487)
Net change in Total OPEB Liability 734 25,670
Total OPEB Liability - beginning 170,860 145,190
Total OPEB Liability - ending $ 171,594 170,860
Covered payroll $ 5,043,934 4,957,313
Total OPEB Liability as a percentage

of covered payroll , 3.40% 3.45%

** Due to the SDBF being considered an unfunded OPEB plan under GASB 75,
benefit payments are treated as being equal to the City's yearly contributions
for retirees.

Note:  The City implemented GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Other than Pensions (OPEB)
effective October 1, 2017. Information for years prior to 2017 is not available.

See accompanying independent auditor’s report,
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City of Woodway, Texas
Schedule of OPEB Contributions
Fiscal Years Ended
September 30,
2019 2018
Actuarially determined contribution $ 1,066 1,009
Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contribution 1,066 1,009
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - -
Covered payroll $ 5,332,738 4,997,194
Contributions as a percentage of covered
payroll 0.02% 0.02%
Notes to Schedule of OPEB Contributions
Valuation Date:
Note Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated
as of December 31 and become effective in Januaty,
13 months later.
Methods and Aséumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:
Inflation 2.5%
Salary Increases 3.50% to 10.50%, including inflation
Discounted Rate 3.71%
Retirees’ share of benefit-
related costs $-0-
Administrative expenses All administrative expenses are paid through the Pension Trust of

TMRS and are accounted for under reporting requirements under
GASB Statement No. 68.

Mortality — service retirees RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustment
with male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by
103% and projected on a fully generational basis with scale BB

Mortality — disabled retirees RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustment
with male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by
103% with a 3 year set-forward for both males and females. The
rates are projected on a fully generational basis with scale BB to
account for future mortality improvements subject to the 3% floor.

Other There were no benefit changes during the year.

Note: The City implemented GASB Statement No. 75, Adccounting and Financial Reporting
Jor Postemployment Benefit Other than Pensions (OPEB) effective October 1, 2017.
Information for years prior to 2018 is not available.

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.
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WOODWAY CITY COUNCIL MINUTES

March 16, 2020

The Woodway City Council met in a regular meeting in the Donald J. Baker Council Chambers at Woodway City
Hall, 922 Estates Drive, Woodway, Texas, on Monday, March 16, 2020, at 5:30 p.m. The following individuals
were in attendance:

Mayor: Bob Howard

Mayor Pro Tem: Keven Kehlenbach

Councilmembers: Scott Giddings, Barbara Grandy, Vic Sober and Amine Qourzal
Absent Jane Kittner

City Manager: Shawn Oubre

City Secretary: Donna Barkley

City Staff: Lenny Caballero and Mitch Davison

Contract Staff’ None

Registered Guests: Chet Patel, Hallettsville, TX

Jesse Blackwell
David Russell, 8009 Rio Vista Dr., Woodway
Jeton Haxhijaj, 405 Navajo Trail, McGregor

CALL MEETING TO ORDER

Mayor Howard called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.

INVOCATION

1. INVOCATION

Councilmember Vic Sober provided the invocation.

PRESENTATIONS AND VISITORS

2. HEAR VISITORS

No visitors came forward to speak at this time.

PUBLIC HEARINGS AND RELATED ACTION

3. A PUBLIC HEARING ON AMENDED APPLICATION TO DEVELOP IN A PLANNED DISTRICT
(STAYBRIDGE SUITES) LOT 10, BLOCK 10, OF THE WOODWAY CENTER ADDITION TO THE
CITY OF WOODWAY, MCLENNAN COUNTY, TEXAS, LOCATED AT 205 COLONNADE PKWY

Mayor Howard opened the public hearing and Mr. Chet Patel, 1632 N. Texoma, Halletsville, Texas spoke in favor of
the application to develop. He stated that this is just an amendment to the facia of the building.
With no one else to speak in favor or in opposition to this item, Mayor Howard closed the public hearing.
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B. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDER ACTION ON AMENDED APPLICATION TO DEVELOP IN A
PLANNED DISTRICT (STAYBRIDGE SUITES) LOT 10, BLOCK 10, OF THE WOODWAY CENTER
ADDITION TO THE CITY OF WOODWAY, MCLENNAN COUNTY, TEXAS, LOCATED AT 205
COLONNADE PKWY

Mr. Oubre provided this is the same project that was brought to the Council previously. The footprint is the same,
however, through corporate licensing the design of the exterior has changed.

Councilmember Giddings moved to approve the amended Application to Develop in a Planned District (Staybridge '
Suites) Lot 10, Block 10, of the Woodway Center Addition to the City of Woodway, McLennan County, Texas, located
at 205 Colonnade Pkwy. Councilmember Sober seconded and the motion passed unanimously by the Councilmembers
present.

4. A PUBLIC HEARING ON APPLICATION TO DEVELOP IN A PLANNED DISTRICT (RESTAURANT)
A 0.933 ACRE TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN THE THOMAS B. WHITE SURVEY, ABSTRACT
896, IN THE CITY OF WOODWAY, MCLENNAN COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING A CALLED 0.93
ACRE TRACT DESCRIBED AS TRACT FIVE IN A DEED TO K-TWELVE, LTD., RECORDED IN
VOLUME 1636, PAGE 394 OF THE DEED RECORDS OF MCLENNAN COUNTY, TEXAS
(D.RM.C.T.), BEING THE REMAINDER OF A CALLED 2 ACRE TRACT AFTER THE
CONVEYANCE OF A CALLED 1.07 ACRE TRACT TO WAGON MASTER LIQUID FEEDS, INC.,
RECORDED IN VOLUME 1317, PAGE 502 OF THE D.RM.C.T.,, AND BEING FURTHER
DESCRIBED IN THE FIELD NOTES, IN THE CITY OF WOODWAY, MCLENNAN COUNTY,
TEXAS, LOCATED AT 6025 WOODWAY DRIVE

Mayor Howard opened the public hearing and Jeton Haxhijaj, (owner) 405 Navajo Trail, McGregor, Texas spoke in
favor of the application to develop.

Mr. Oubre stated that he moved from being close to Hwy 84 to a more centered location on his property.
With no one else to speak in favor or in opposition to this item, Mayor Howard closed the public hearing.

B. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDER ACTION ON APPLICATION TO DEVELOP IN A PLANNED
DISTRICT (RESTAURANT) A 0.933 ACRE TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN THE THOMAS B.
WHITE SURVEY, ABSTRACT 896, IN THE CITY OF WOODWAY, MCLENNAN COUNTY,
TEXAS, BEING A CALLED 0.93 ACRE TRACT DESCRIBED AS TRACT FIVE IN A DEED TO K-
TWELVE, LTD., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1636, PAGE 394 OF THE DEED RECORDS OF
MCLENNAN COUNTY, TEXAS (D.R.M.C.T.), BEING THE REMAINDER OF A CALLED 2 ACRE
TRACT AFTER THE CONVEYANCE OF A CALLED 1.07 ACRE TRACT TO WAGON MASTER
LIQUID FEEDS, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1317, PAGE 502 OF THE D.RM.C.T., AND
BEING FURTHER DESCRIBED IN THE FIELD NOTES, IN THE CITY OF WOODWAY,
MCLENNAN COUNTY, TEXAS, LOCATED AT 6025 WOODWAY DRIVE

There were no additional comments or questions.
Councilmember Qourzal moved to approve the Application to Develop in a Planned District (restaurant) a 0.933

acre tract of land located in the Thomas B. White Survey, Abstract 896, in the City of Woodway, McLennan
County, Texas, being a called 0.93 acre tract described as tract five in a deed to K-Twelve, Ltd., recorded in
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Volume 1636, Page 394 of the deed records of McLennan County, Texas (D.R.M.C.T.), being the remainder of a
called 2 acre tract after the conveyance of a called 1.07 acre tract to Wagon Master Liquid Feeds, Inc., recorded in
Volume 1317, Page 502 of the D.R.M.C.T., and being further described in the field notes, in the City of
Woodway, McLennan County, Texas, located at 6025 Woodway Drive. Mayor Pro Tem Kehlenbach seconded
and the motion passed unanimously by the Councilmembers present.

ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL DISCUSSION, CONSIDERATION AND/OR ACTION

5. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDER ACTION ON ACCEPTANCE OF APPLICATION TO DEVELOP IN
A PLANNED DISTRICT (DAYCARE) LOT 1, BLOCK 10, WOODWAY CENTER ADDITION,
LOCATED AT THE INTERSECTION OF ARCHWAY DR BETWEEN COLONNADE PKWY AND
JEWEL DRIVE

Mr. Oubre provided comments and stated that a representative of the applicant is in attendance to answer any
questions.

Councilmember Grandy moved to accept the Application to Develop in a Planned District (Daycare) Lot 1,
Block 10, Woodway Center Addition, located at the intersection of Archway Dr between Colonnade Pkwy and
Jewel Drive. Councilmember Sober seconded and the motion passed unanimously by the councilmembers
present.

CONSENT AGENDA

6. A, DISCUSSION AND CONSIDER ACTION ON MINUTES OF THE WOODWAY CITY COUNCIL
WORKSHOP HELD FEBRUARY 20, 2020, AT 12:00 P.M.

B.  DISCUSSION AND CONSIDER ACTION ON MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL
MEETING HELD FEBRUARY 24, 2020, AT 5:30 P.M.

C. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDER ACTION ON AWARD OF BID #20-01, CARLEEN BRIGHT
ARBORETUM - PAVILION FOUNTAIN

D.  DISCUSSION AND CONSIDER ACTION ON MCLENNAN COUNTY 9-1-1 EMERGENCY
ASSISTANCE DISTRICT BOARD OF MANAGERS NOMINATIONS
Mr. Oubre provided information on Items C and D. No items were removed from the Consent Agenda
7. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDER ACTION ON CONSENT AGENDA
Councilmember Sober moved that all items on the Consent Agenda be approved as follows:
A.  Approve the minutes of the Woodway City Council Workshop held February 20,2020, at 12:00 p.m.
B.  Approve the minutes of the regular City Council meeting held F ebruary 24, 2020, at 5:30 p.m.

C.  Award of Bid #20-01, to Picture Perfect, LLC, to construct the Pavilion fountain at the Carleen Bright




Packet Pg. 98

WOODWAY CITY COUNCIL MINUTES
Page 4
March 16, 2020

Arboretum in the amount of $173,729.00

D.  Authorize staff to submit form nominating Bret Crook (Seat 1) to continue serving and Jim Devlin (Seat 2)
to serve on the McLennan County 9-1-1 Emergency Assistance District Board of Managers

Councilmember Giddings seconded the motion, and the motion passed unanimously by the councilmembers
present.

CITY MANAGER AND CITY COUNCIL REPORTS

8. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT

Mr. Oubre provided comments on the following:

¢ Comments on how staff and the City are monitoring and managing the current state of the coronavirus.
You have received a copy of the press release that was sent out on Sunday.

e  Still important to remain calm and have an awareness of what is going on.
Updates on coronavirus testing at the state level

e We postponed the beginning of the practice season for volleyball and baseball. We have asked the
employees to just go on a detailed cleaning of the Family Center.
There have been some corporate cancelations at the Arboretum.

* Events that will need to be canceled

9.  CITY COUNCIL REPORTS

Councilmember Giddings reported on the last Youth Commission meeting. The collections from the Bound for
the Brave run was the largest amount so far.

CLOSING ITEMS

10.  CONSIDER ACTION ON THE OPEN MEETINGS ACT RESOLUTION

Councilmember Sober moved to approve the Open Meetings Act Resolution. Councilmember Grandy seconded
the motion, and the motion passed unanimously by the councilmembers present.

11.  CONSIDER ACTION ON ADJOURNMENT

Councilmember Giddings moved to adjourn the meeting. Councilmember Sober seconded the motion, and the
motion passed unanimously by the councilmembers present. The meeting adjourned at 5:51 p.m.

Donna Barkley, City Secretary Bob Howard, Mayor
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CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM FORM

Meeting Date: March 23, 2020 O Presentation, Report and/or Discussion Only
O Public Hearing/Related Action

Prepared By: Donna Barkley B Individual Discussion/Action
O Consent

Approved By: Q/ [0 Executive Session

Caption:

Consider action on the Open Meetings Act Resolution

Background Information:

Attached is the Open Meetings Act Resolution. City Attorney David Cherry recommends that this item be placed
on each meeting agenda and that it be adopted at each meeting.

Financial Impact:

Total of Proposed Expenditure:
Amount Budgeted:

Account No.:

If not budgeted, other funding options:

I 2 o

Staff Recommendation:

Adopt the Open Meetings Act Resolution.
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OPEN MEETINGS ACT RESOLUTION

RESOLVED, that it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this
resolution is adopted was noticed and has been open to the public as tequired by law.

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 234 day of March 2020,

THE CITY OF WOODWAY, TEXAS

By

MAYOR

ATTEST:

CITY SECRETARY
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MISCELLANEQUS ITEMS FOR COUNCIL

Distributed with March 23, 2020 City Council Meeting Packet

> Tentative list of agenda items for future meetings

Upcoming Calendar Items of Interest

- Monday, March 23 Regular City Council meeting — 5:30 p.m. — Donald J. Baker
Council Chambers

- Friday, April 10 Good Friday — Employee Holiday

- Monday, April 13 Regular City Council meeting — 5:30 p.m. — Donald J. Baker

Council Chambers

- Monday, April 27 Regular City Council meeting ~ 5:30 p.m. — Donald J. Baker
Council Chambers
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PENDING AGENDA ITEMS

WOODWAY CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING/ZONING COMMISSION
(Updated 03/19/20)

This is a tentative planning calendar utilized to assist the City Secretaty to compile draft meeting agendas.

DATE CITY COUNCIL ITEMS DATE | PLANNING & ZONING ITEMS

03/24/20 | - PH, D & CA SUP renewal for Verizon

- Staff Update
04/13/20 | - PH, D & CA SUP renewal for Verizon 04/14/20 | - Staff Update
= D & CA on Verizon Ground Lease Agreement -
- Quarterly Presentation — Public Safety -
- Quarterly Presentation — Community Services -
04/27/20 | - Quarterly Presentation — Finance Department 04/28/20 | - Staff Update
05/11/20 | - Oath of Office newly elected councilmembers 05/12/20 | - Staff update

- Appointment of Mayor

- Appointment of Mayor Pro Tem

- D & CA on Council’s rules of procedure

- Recognition of YC members & graduating seniors
- D & CA on annual appts & reappts to Woodway
Boards and Commissions

RECURRING COUNCIL ITEMS:

January/April/July/October (first meeting of the month) - Quarterly presentations - Public Safety and Community
Services

January/April/July/October (second meeting of the month) - Quarterly presentation - Finance

January/July (second Council meeting of the month) - Semi-annual presentations - Carleen Bright Arboretum and
Woodway Family Center

PH, D&CA on continuation of youth curfew - Mandatory every three years - Requires ordinance (Next - 09/2022)
Woodway Public Safety Association Day proclamation - Annually at the meeting prior to the annual barbecue
Appointment of Judges to Municipal Court of Record every two years (Next — 09/2020)

RECURRIN G P&Z ITEMS:- Every six months - Update to P&Z from Building Official regarding current PUD projects

(Next 8/2020)




